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February 20 2009

To the Honorable Mayor Members of the City Council City Manager and Citizens of the

City of Plainview

The City of Plainviews Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year ended September
30 2008 is hereby submitted This report consists of managements representations concerning
the finances of the City of Plainview Consequently management assumes full responsibility for

the completeness and reliability of all the information presented in this report To provide a

reasonable basis for making these representations management of the City of Plainview has

established a comprehensive internal control framework that is designed both to protect the

governments assets from loss theft or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for

the preparation of the City of Plainviews financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their

benefits the City of Plainviews comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed
to provide reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free

from material misstatement As management we assert that to the best of our knowledge and

belief this financial report is complete and reliable in all material respects

The City of Plainviews financial statements have been audited by Williams Meriwether Smith

Co a firm of licensed certified public accountants The goal of the independent audit was to

provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Plainview for the fiscal

year ended September 30 2008 are free of material misstatement The independent audit

involved examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation The independent auditor

concluded based upon the audit that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an unqualified
opinion that the City of Plainviewsfinancial statements for the fiscal year ended September 30

2008 are fairly presented in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles The

independent auditors report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this

report

Generally accepted accounting principles require that management provide a narrative

introduction overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of

Managements Discussion and Analysis MDA This letter of transmittal is designed to

complement MDA and should be read in conjunction with it The City of PlainviewsMDA

can be found immediately following the report of the independent auditors

Profile of the Government

The City of Plainview incorporated in 1907 is located on the Central Plains of Northwest Texas

46 miles north of Lubbock and 75 miles south of Amarillo The City of Plainview is the County
Seat of Hale County one of the most intensively farmed counties in the state with crops irrigated



from water produced from the Ogallala Aquifer Cotton is the major crop Other crops include

corn soybeans sorghum wheat peanuts vegetables as well as dairy cows swine sheep and

beef cattle production The City of Plainview is the agribusiness financial and transportation
center of this highly developed farming area

The City of Plainview currently occupies a land area of 13 square miles and serves an estimated

population of 21324 The City of Plainview is empowered to levy tax on both real and personal
properties located within its boundaries It also is empowered by state statute to extend its

corporate limits by annexation which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the

governing council

The City of Plainview a home rule city has operated under the councilmanager form of

government since 1964 Policymaking and legislative authority are vested in a governing council

consisting of the mayor and seven other members The governing council is responsible among
other things for passing ordinances adopting the budget appointing committees and hiring both

the governments manager and attorney The governments manager is responsible for carrying
out the policies and ordinances of the governing council for overseeing the daytoday operations
of the government and for appointing the heads of various departments The council is elected on

a nonpartisan basis Council members serve fouryear staggered terms with four members

elected every two years The mayor is elected at large and the other seven members are elected by
district

The City of Plainview provides a full range of services These services include police and fire

protection maintenance of streets and infrastructure emergency medical service parks and

recreation cultural events library health vector control zoning code administration building
inspection and general administrative services The City of Plainview also provides utility
services which include water supply and distribution storm water waste water collection and

treatment and solid waste collection and disposal

The City of Plainviews accounting records for general government operations are maintained on

a modified accrual basis with the revenues being recorded when available and measurable and

expenditures being recorded when the services or goods are received and the liabilities are

incurred Accounting records for the Citys utilities and other proprietary activities are maintained

on the accrual basis

The City charter provides that the City Council shall adopt the annual budget by the passage of a

budget ordinance This budget prepared by City management is reviewed by the City Council

subsequent to a public hearing The City Manager may transfer budgeted amounts among

programs within a department or major organizational unit however any revisions that alter the

total expenditures of any fund must be approved by the City Council

Budgetary control has been established at the individual fund level Financial reports are

produced displaying budget and actual expenditures by line item and are distributed monthly to

City departmental and divisional management and to others upon request

Individual line items are reviewed and analyzed for budgetary compliance Personnel

expenditures are monitored and controlled at a position level and capital expenditures are

monitored and controlled item by item Revenue projections are reviewed monthly
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Economic Outlook and Financial Condition

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is

considered from the broader perspective of the environment within which the City of Plainview

operates

Local economy The South Plains region of West Texas is nearing the completion of harvesting a

cotton crop described as average in terms of yield The input costs to produce this average yield
were the highest ever and per pound sales prices remain largely unchanged putting pressure on

profitability for most producers With cotton as the major crop and the agriculture support
industries as the backbone of the local economy the short term outlook is uncertain

An ethanol plant with a 100 million gallon annual production capacity constructed three miles

east of the city has suspended operations due to the current economic environment driving down

fuel prices

A peanut processing facility in the city operated by the Peanut Corporation of America has been

closed by the Department of State Healthcare Services and a bankruptcy filing is anticipated

When considering these events the local economy is proving to be resilient Sales tax receipts
though February are 44 over the same five month period last year Property tax collections are

11 ahead of last year as a percent of levy collected The one revenue source that has

experienced a decline is investment earnings and the dramatic downturn can be attributed to the

broader national and world economy rather than the local economy

Longterm financial planning In recent years the City of Plainview has completed a number of

major capital projects designed to position the City for the future These completed projects were

the construction of a new wastewater treatment plant the renovation and expansion of the water

treatment facility and the replacement of fiftyfive miles of water distribution lines Also
reconstruction of various major thoroughfares and the related storm drainage systems were

completed

During the fiscal year now ended a project to develop a new lined disposal cell within the Citys

Type I landfill was nearing completion needing only additional drainage work and a

determination of the additional monitoring requirements by the Texas Commission on

Environmental Quality

The governing council and city staff are exploring the possibility of developing additional

ground water reserves Although current water resources exceed the Citys current demand the

continued depletion of surface water containment of past years has highlighted the importance of

securing additional water resources for future increases in demand The City through
membership in the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority CRMWA has committed to a

project to acquire additional underground water rights and connect the resulting well fields to

existing water production assets in that area This project is well under way with the acquisition
of ground water rights that are projected to sustain the citys CRMWA current allocation beyond
the end of this century and the well fields in the development phase The Citys portion of the

cost is approximately 36 million This project will be financed with CRMWA bonds and the

debt will be serviced by the Citys water and sewer utility enterprise fund
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Local water resource development is also underway with the purchase of additional water rights
and the completion of two new municipal wells A water system study is also underway to assess

the feasibility of reworking existing wells for greater production efficiency and the need to

increase water storage capacity A portion of this project is expected to be financed with reserve

funds dedicated for water system improvements with the remainder financed by issuing new debt

No cost estimates are available at this time

Cash management The City of Plainview awards its depository contract through official bidding
procedures for a three year period with a provision for two oneyear continuations under the same

contract The initial three year period of the current depository contract with Wells Fargo Bank

expires September 30 2009

The current contract with Wells Fargo Bank guarantees the City of Plainview the Federal Funds

target rate on demand deposits with the remainder of idle cash placed in certificates of deposit in

various banks At the end of the first fiscal quarter the City held 137 million in certificates of

deposit with an average maturity of 217 days and an average yield of316

It is the City of Plainviews policy that all demand deposits and time deposits be secured by
pledged collateral with a market value equal to no less than 102 of the deposits less an amount

insured by FDIC Evidence of the pledged collateral is maintained by the finance department and

a third party financial institution Collateral is reviewed monthly by the finance staff and

quarterly by an independent consultant to assure the market value of the securities pledged is

adequate

All safekeeping arrangements are in accordance with a safekeeping agreement approved by the

City Manager which defines the procedural steps for gaining access to pledged collateral on

deposit should the City of Plainview determine that the Citys funds are in jeopardy The

safekeeping institution or Custodian is the Federal Reserve Bank of Boston The safekeeping
agreement is a threeparty contract between the City of Plainview the depository bank and the

Federal Reserve Bank as Custodian Additional information on the Citys banking and investing
activities can be found in Note B of the financial statements

Risk management The City of Plainview has joined together with other governmental agencies in

the State as a member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool TMLIRP
for insurance coverage The City pays an annual premium for coverage of workers compensation

liability general liability law enforcement liability errors and omissions liability auto liability
and property damage The City of Plainview is generally selfinsured for physical damage to

vehicles Additional information on the Citys risk management activities can be found in Note M

of the financial statements

Employee health plan The City of Plainview provides and maintains an employee health care

plan The plan admits employees dependants and retirees however the City provides no funding
for any portion of these premiums The plan is a modified selfinsurance plan in that a third party
administrator provides processing services and PPO contracts with service providers and excess

loss coverage Additional information on the Citys health coverage can be found in Note L of the

financial statements

Pension benefits The City participates in two retirement plans Firefighters are provided benefits

through the Citys single employer defined benefit pension plan and all other employees are
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provided benefits through anoninstitutional joint contributory hybrid defined benefit plan in the

statewide Texas Municipal Retirement System TMRS

The Firefighters Retirement System is administered by a board of trustees The actuarial valuation

for the System was completed as of December 31 2007 The funded ratio of actuarial accrued

liability of this plan was 549 As a matter of policy the City contributes 145 of firefighter
salaries toward pension financing while firefighters individually contribute 14

Each year TMRS engages an independent actuary to study the plan and calculate the Citys
required contribution The last available study was completed as of December 31 2007 and

reported the funded ratio of accrued liability was 71 The Citys contribution rate at year end

was 124 of payroll and the employees individually contribute 7 100 of the Citys annual

required contribution was paid in for both plans TMRS has changed the Plans actuarial cost

method to the Projected Unit Credit method and due to the resulting increase in contribution rate

the City has opted to use an eight year phasein period to gradually increase contributions to the

full rate TMRS also plans to diversify the funds investment portfolio from the current allbond

policy to a mix of equities and bonds The change in investment policy on the Citys future

contribution rate has not yet been determined Additional information on the Citys pension
arrangements and postemployment benefits can be found in Notes K and U of the financial

statements and in the required supplementary information
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORSREPORT

To the City Council

City of Plainview Texas

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities the businesstype activities

each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Plainview Texas the City as of and

for the year ended September 30 2008 which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial statements as listed in

the table of contents These financial statements are the responsibility of the Citys management Our responsibility is

to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment Auditing Standards issued by the

Comptroller General of the United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes

examining on a test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit

also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by management as well

as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for

our opinions

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the respective
financial position of the governmental activities the businesstype activities each major fund and the aggregate

remaining fund information of the City as of September 30 2008 and the respective changes in financial position
and cash flows where applicable thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America

In accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards we have also issued our report dated February 9 2009 on our

consideration of the Citys internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain

provisions of laws regulations contracts and grant agreements and other matters The purpose of that report is to

describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that

testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance That report is

an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Govemment Auditing Standards and should be considered

in assessing the results of our audit

The managements discussion and analysis budgetary comparison information and schedule of funding progress on

pages 2 through 12 and 52 through 55 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are

supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America We

have applied certain limited procedures which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the

methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information However we did not audit the

information and express no opinion on it

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise
the Citys basic financial statements The introductory section combining financial statements individual nonmajor
fund budgetary comparison schedules supporting schedules and general information section are presented for

purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements The combining financial

statements individual nonmajor fund budgetary comparison schedules and the supporting schedules have been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and in our opinion are

fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole The introductory and

general information sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic

financial statements and accordingly we express no opinion on them

Waiiavwa Merwether Svntlti Ca L Lt

February 9 2009
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MANAGEMENTSDISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This section of the City of Plainviews annual financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the Citys
financial performance during the fiscal year ended September 30 2008 Please read it in conjunction with the Citys
financial statements and disclosure which follow this section

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Entity Wide

The Citys combined total assets were 74420249 at September 30 2008 and 69148763 at September
30 2007 increasing76

Total liabilities were18646200 at September 30 2008 an increase of 7 from September 30 2007

The total assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close of the fiscal year by55774049 an increase of

79 Of this amount 26199469 in unrestricted net assets may be used to meet the governments ongoing
obligations to citizens and creditors

During the year the Citys total revenues from all sources exceeded expenses by4059715

Governmental Funds

Total current assets were 12090539 at September 30 2008 and 10478866 at September 30 2007
increasing 154

All combined governmental funds reported an ending fund balance of11263263 or a 168 increase from

the previous year

For the period ended September 30 2008 total revenues exceeded total expenditures by1407523

Proprietary Funds

Net assets for combined enterprise funds grew to 29294110 or 44 Of this amount9764516 is

unrestricted and available to be used to meet the ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors

The change in net assets or net income generated from operations of the combined enterprise funds during
the period ended September 30 2008 is reported at1229648

A net decrease in cash and cash equivalents of2097992 is reported for the combined enterprise funds
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OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction

statements This annual report consists of three partsmanagements
discussion and analysis this section the basic financial statements and

required supplementary information The basic financial statements

include two kinds of statements that present different views of the City

to the City of Plainviews basic financial

Figure A1 Required Components of the

Citys Annual Financial Report

The first two statements are governmentwide financial statements

that provide both longterm and shortterm information about the

Citys overall financial status

The remaining statements are fund financial statements that focus

on individual parts of the government reporting the Citys operations
in more detail than the governmentwide statements

The governmental funds statements tell how general government
services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for

future spending

Proprietary fund statements offer short and longterm financial

information about the activities the government operates like

businesses

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the

information in the financial statements and provide more detailed data The

statements are followed by a section of required supplementary information

that further explains and supports the information in the financial

statements Figure A1 shows how the required parts of this annual report
are arranged and related to one

Xarayenreeta BaslC Requlrtad

laeuaaiak Flnanclal Supplementary

acrd Statements information

oQalyoia

GovernmentWlde Fund d
Flnanclal Flnanclal ro

Statements Statemems

Staterreta

Summary Detail

Figure A2 Major Features of the CitysGovernmentwide and Fund Financial Statements
another

Figure A2 summarizes the major
features of the Citys financial

statements including the portion of

the City government they cover and

the types of information they contain
The remainder of this overview

section of managements discussion

and analysis explains the structure

and contents of each of the

statements

Governmentwide Statements

The governmentwide statements

report information about the City as a

whole using accounting methods

similar to those used by private
sector companies The statement of

net assets includes all of the

governments assets and liabilities

All of the current years revenues and

expenses are accounted for in the

statement of activities regardless of

when cash is received or paid

Fund Statements

Tt e o Statements Governmentwide Governmental Funds Pro rietar Funds Fiduciar Funds

enure citys govenunem 71te activities of the City Activities the City Instances N which the

except fiduciary Ponds that am not proprietary or operates similar n private City is the trustee or

and the Citys component fiduciary husinesses agent Cur someone elses
Scope

units resources

ntement o neteCl 1 an C2 s 1M iAICIOCnr o nq asSCL tatetnent oncir3Ty
net assztsy

Regrureditnanciat Statementoxtivities Statemem etnvannes Statrmrnurt mYtues i Statenrcm fchangcs

statnnvnrr exnrdimr C ohangcs expetuc miJ chvrges in i in Fdoarv ixt assets

in Innd 6ahnces fund net assets

Statement of cash flows

tn i hnn ii Aaiuil nGng anJ Atndili I acniil A ne l acn a nine and ri ne l u i mini anJ

udnn r urr nm Ic fu

A
iru ficanJ eunrni na e it co5 nnn Ieus

i ll assrs and Iiabilis Qnly asxts expeztrtt to All assets and liabilites All accets and liabilities

both nancial and capiml he used up aztd liabilitiesi both Financial and capita both shortterm and kng
Type of t

shoefeint arxl longterm that wine due during the and shortterm and long term the Agency s Fonds do
nssetlialrlitt

year or scxm thereafter feint not currenth contain
infirrnirtrinrr

no capital assets imaudad capilnl assets although
the can

All revenues and Revenues Cor which cash All revenues and expenses All revenues and

expenses during year is received during or soon during year regardless of cxpensc during year

regardless of when cash aftathe end of the year when cash is rreccivcd or regardless of when cash

Tope rf is rrcccived nr paid expenditures when gotxls paid is received or paid

inflowoutflow or services have been

information received and paymt is

due during the year or

soon themaftr
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The two governmentwide statements report the Citys net assets and how they have changed Net assetsthe

difference between the Citys assets and liabilitiesis one way to measure the Citys financial health or position

Over time increases or decreases in the Citys net assets may be an indicator of whether its financial health is

improving or deteriorating respectively

To assess the overall health of the City one needs to consider additional nonfinancial factors such as

changes in the Citys tax base

The governmentwide financial statements of the City include the Governmental activities Most of the Citys basic

services are included here such as general government public safety streets economic development parks and

recreation and interest on longterm debt Property taxes and sales taxes finance most of these activities The

governmentwide financial statements of the City also include the Businesstype activities The most significant being
a Water and Sewer operation and a Solid Waste Collection and Disposal operation These are supported by user

charges

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the Citys most significant fundsnot the City
as a whole Funds are accounting devices that the City uses to keep track of specific sources of funding and

spending for particular purposes

Some funds are required by State law and by bond covenants

The City Council or management establishes other funds to control and manage money for particular
purposes or to show that it is properly using certain taxes and grants

The City has the following kinds of funds

Governmental fundMost of the Citys basic services are included in governmental funds which focus on 1
how cash and other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash flow in and out and 2 the balances

left at yearend that are available for spending Consequently the governmental fund statements provide a

detailed shortterm view that helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that

can be spent in the near future to finance the Citys programs Because this information does not encompass
the additional longterm focus of the governmentwide statements we provide additional information at the

bottom of the governmental funds statement or on the subsequent page that explain the relationship or
differences between them

Proprietary fundsServices for which the City charges customers a fee are generally reported in proprietary
funds Proprietary funds like the governmentwide statements provide both longterm and shortterm

financial information

We use infernal service funds to report activities that provide supplies and services for the Citys other

programs and activities
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITY AS A WHOLE

Net assets

The Citys combined net assets totaled55774049 at September 30 2008 406 million higher than the prior year

See Table A1

Table A1

Citys Net Assets

In thousands dollars

Governmental Business type Total

Activities Activities Total Percent

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 Chanoe

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 8577 14498 4680 6854 13257 21352 38

Investments 7500 3185 10685

Due from other governments 42 44 42 44 5

Internal balances 44 85 44 85 0

Other receivables 1376 1199 1053 1039 2429 2238 9

Inventories 93 89 154 132 247 221 12

Total current assets 17544 15745 9116 8110 26660 23855 12

Noncurrent assets 1364 1394 9878 8933 11242 10327 9

Capital assets 26345 24344 44540 43506 70885 67850 4

Less accumulated

depreciation 17185 16421 17181 16463 34366 32884 5

Total assets 28068 25062 46353 44086 74421 69148 8

Accounts payable and

accrued liabilities 787 665 382 266 1169 931 26

Deposits and escrow held 367 359 367 359 2

Compensated absences 861 853 77 72 938 925 1

Landfill closurepostclosure 992 922 992 922 8

Bonds payable 15181 14297 15181 14297 6

Total liabilities 1648 1518 16999 15916 18647 17434 7

Net assets

Invested in capital assets 9160 7923 19280 19118 28440 27041 5

Restricted 885 762 249 269 1134 1031 10

Unrestricted 16375 14859 9825 8783 26200 23642 11

Total net assets 26420 23544 29354 28170 55774 51714 8

At the end of the current fiscal year the City of Plainview is able to report positive balances in all three categories of net assets

for the government as a whole as well as for its separate governmental and businesstype activities As noted earlier net assets

may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governments financial position The largest portion of the Citys net assets 51

percent reflects its investment in capital assets less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding The

City uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens consequently these assets are not available for future spending
Although the Citys investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt it should be noted that the resources needed to

repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these

liabilities
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Changes in net assets

The Citys total revenues for the period ended September 30 2008 were 21609274 A significant portion 43 percent of

the Citys revenue comes from taxes See Figure A3 while 40 percent comes from charges for services The total cost of all

programs and services was17549559

Figure A3

Sources of Revenue

for Fiscal Year 2008
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Property Taxes
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Expenses by Activity
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Table A2 reflects a comparative detail of changes in net assets of the City A more detailed presentation about

current year activities may be found in the financial statements Exhibit B1 of this report

Table A2

Changes in Citys Net Assets

In thousands dollars

Governmental Businesstype Total

Activities Activities Total Percent

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 Change

Program revenues

Charges for services 1101 915 8603 8048 9704 8963 8

Grants and contributions 295 313 1 11 296 324 9

General revenues

Property taxes 3839 3812 3839 3812 1

Other taxes 5237 4645 5237 4645 13

Other 607 799 653 725 1260 1524 17

Total revenues 11079 10484 9257 8784 20336 19268 6

Expenses
General government 1364 1204 1364 1204 13

Public safety 5975 5570 5975 5570 7

Public works 1197 1193 1197 1193 0

Recreation and culture 1013 911 1013 911 11

Health 387 336 387 336 15

Solid waste management 2201 1957 2201 1957 12

Water and sewer 5380 5026 5380 5026 7

Theatre arts 32 38 32 38 16

Total expenses 9936 9214 7613 7021 17549 16235 8

Special item 1273 1273 0

Transfers 460 383 460 383 0

Total special items and

transfers 1733 383 460 383 1273 0

Change in net assets 2876 1653 1184 1380 4060 3033 34

Net assets beginning 23544 21891 28170 26790 51714 48681 6

Net assets ending 26420 23544 29354 28170 55774 51714 8
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Governmental Activities

As shown in Table A2 governmental activities increased net assets by2875953 accounting for 71 of the

increase in total net assets Table A3 presents the cost of each of the Citys largest functions as well as each

functions net cost total cost less fees generated by the activities and intergovernmental aid The net cost reflects

what was funded by local tax dollars

Property tax rates decreased 07 cents per 100 valuation This decrease coupled with a 007 increase in

values enabled an increase in property tax revenues of 26935 or07

The franchise tax rate on gas and electric utilities increased from 3 to 5 generating 469423 in additional

revenue 79 of the 13 increase in Other taxes

The cost of all governmental activities this year was9936396 compared to the previous year of9214694
a 78 increase

The amount that our taxpayers paid for these activities through taxes was8540822

Some of the cost was paid by those who directly benefited from the programs1100752 or

By grants and contributions 294822

Table A3

Net Cost of Citys Governmental Activities

In thousand dollars

Total Cost of Percent

Services Change
2008 2007

Net Cost of Percent

Services Change

2008 2007

General government 1364 1204 13 1061 928 14

Public safety 5975 5570 7 5243 4943 6

Public works 1197 1193 0 1197 1157 3

Recreation and culture 1013 911 11 953 858 11

Health 387 336 15 87 101 14

Total governmental activities 9936 9214 8 8541 7987 7

Businesstype Activities

Businesstype activities increased the Citys net assets by1183762 accounting for 29 of the total increase in the

governments net assets

Charges for services generated revenues of8603467 for the period ended September 30 2008 compared
to8047901 for the previous period This 69 increase was derived from a 4 increase in solid waste

collection rates and a return to expected demand for water after above average rainfall in the previous year

Expenses totaled7613163 for 2008 and7020984 for 2007 an 84 increase Pressure from increasing
costs associated with delivery of raw water and raising energy costs in the water utility services along with

higher fuel costs in the solid waste collection and disposal operation were the main contributors to the

increase

Transfers from businesstype activities to support general government activities were 460018 for the period
a 20 increase from the previous period

8



FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE CITYS FUNDS

As noted earlier the City of Plainview uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal
requirements

Governmental Funds

The focus of the Citys governmental funds is to provide information on nearterm inflows outflows and balances of

spendable resources Such information is useful in assessing the Citys financing requirements In particular
unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a governments net resources available for spending at

the end of the fiscal year

As of the end of the current fiscal year the Citys governmental funds reported a combined ending fund

balance of 11263263 an increase of1617541 A combination of favorable budget variances for both

general fund revenues and expenditures were the key elements of this increase These variances were 89

and 71 respectively As a result the general fund accounted for 58 of the increase

Total assets of the General Fund increased 113This increase is mainly attributable to the increase in cash
cash equivalents and investments from7263186 at the end of the prior period to8003708 at the end of

fiscal year 2008

Total liabilities decreased only slightly and remained consistent with the prior year reporting 827276 in 2008

and 833144 in 2007

Of the combined ending fund balance approximately 11 million constitutes unreserved fund balance which is

available for spending at the governments discretion

Proprietary Funds

The Citys proprietary funds financial statements provide the same type of information found in the governmentwide
financial statements but in more detail There are two types of funds presented the businesstype enterprise
funds and the internal service funds The purpose of internal service funds is to provide services within a government
on a breakeven basis The net income or loss from these internal service funds has been allocated back to the user

departments or funds for the governmentwide financial statements The internal service funds reflect a total net

assets amount of7160914 Of this amount1914307 is invested in capital assets and1923341 is for health

benefits for the Citys employees The remainder of the unrestricted net assets are generally used to replace capital
assets

Of the combined unrestricted net assets of the enterprise funds at the end of fiscal year 2008 approximately 97
million was available for future spending Factors concerning the finances of these funds have already been

addressed in the discussion of the Citys businesstype activities

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

A primary goal for the General Fund operating budget is that current budgeted revenues will equal or exceed current

budgeted expenditures Only unforeseen or emergency circumstances will be considered justification for utilizing the

fund balance The following is a brief review of the budgetary changes from the original to the final amended budget
See Exhibit E1 of the Financial Statements

An additional appropriation of 13000 was approved to fund plumbing and electrical repairs at the library

building

An additional transfer of 50000 to the fleet maintenance fund was approved to cover unbilled services



The budget was amended by 34000 to provide the cash match for a Department of Housing and Urban

Development HOME Investment Partnerships grant

During the year actual receipts were exceeding budgeted revenues and expenditures were less than

budgetary estimates thus allowing the City Council to approve a transfer of 150000 to an equipment
replacement fund a transfer of 250000 to a capital improvements fund a transfer of 100000 to a street

improvement fund and an additional transfer of 150000 to an economic development fund

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The Citys investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities as of September 30 2008

amounts to36518158 net of accumulated depreciation This investment in capital assets includes land buildings
systems system improvements machinery equipment park facilities and roadways See Table A4

Table A4

Citys Capital Assets

In thousand dollars

Governmental Businesstype Total

Activities Activities Total Percent

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 Change

Land 520 520 529 529 1049 1049 0

Buildings 3335 3283 2615 2615 5950 5898 1

System improvements 35149 34860 35149 34860 1

Infrastructure 14940 13266 14940 13266 13

Machinery and equipment 7543 6927 5332 5296 12875 12223 5

Construction in progress 7 348 914 206 921 554 66

Totals at historical cost 26345 24344 44539 43506 70884 67850 4

Accumulated depreciation 17185 16421 17181 16463 34366 32884 5

Net capital assets 9160 7923 27358 27043 36518 34966 4

Additional information on the Citys capital assets can be found in the financial statements Exhibits I1 thru I3 as

well as the notes to the financial statements Note F of this report
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Long Term Debt

At year end the City had9065000 in bonds and notes outstanding In addition the

City is one of 11 member cities of the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority and is

obligated on its proportionate share of the Authoritys debt See Table A5

During the fiscal year1550000 of Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of

Obligation Series 2008 were issued to fund new cell construction and additional

monitoring wells for a Type I landfill as well as water and sewer system improvements It

is managements intent to repay this obligation with excess revenues from the related

enterprise funds No refunding of existing debt occurred during the period ended

September 30 2008 More detail on the Citys longterm obligations may be found in the

notes to the financial statements Note J

Table A5

Citys Outstanding Bond and Contract Debt

In thousand dollars

Certificates of obligation
W ater supply contract

obligation

Total outstanding debt

Bond Ratings

The Citys bonds presently
carry AAA ratings with

underlying ratings as

follows

Moodys Investor

ServicesA2

Governmental Businesstype Total

Activities Activities Total Percent

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 Change

9065 7925 9065 7925 14

6106 6372 6106 6372

15171 14297 15171 14297

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEARSBUDGETS AND RATES

The City of Plainview is centrally located in a highly developed agricultural region and with this region harvesting crop

yields that are characterized as average along with commodity prices trending lower the economic outlook is

uncertain While our Industrial Foundation is engaged in attracting manufacturing and industrial enterprises to our

area our local economy is still dependent on economic conditions which affect the agriculture sector With a

dependency on one economic sector comes inherent uncertainty and with 48 of the Citys general fund revenues

dependent upon sales and gross receipts business taxes the City Council and management must consider the

impact of these conditions on revenues and expenditures in setting the ad valorem tax rate As a result of these

considerations and considering assessed valuations had only increased 2 a 00343 per 100 of valuation

increase in the ad valorem rate was considered necessary to maintain the current level of services Accordingly a

rate of05685 per 100 of valuation was adopted

The General Fund expenditure budget for the upcoming year increased 45 This increase is attributable to

expected inflationary pressures on existing programs replacement equipment acquisition and salary increases at the

rate of 3 for the entire workforce There is no budgeted reduction of General Fund reserves

The City is undertaking an overall water utility study to determine future water supply needs how best to meet those

needs and maintenance or improvement needs to existing infrastructure and how to best meet those needs A good
measure of the future water supply needs is being met through the eleven member cities Canadian River Municipal
Water Authority The Authority has purchased additional water rights and is in the latter phases of developing a new

well field The cost of any future projects identified by the study are not yet known however management expects to

4

6
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fund these projects with onethird of the proceeds approximately 500000 of a bond issue made in the year now

ended with the remainder from reserve funds designated for system improvements In accordance with the intent to

selffund these projects water and sewer base rates were increased 5 and the incremental usage rate for both

water and sewer were increased 5

The 20082009 budget contains a 5 increase in solid waste collection and disposal fees to fund rising fuel costs a

3 increase in salaries and this utilities approximate twothirds share of a new bond issue There is no budgeted
reduction in Solid Waste Management Fund reserves

CONTACTING THE CITYS FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens taxpayers customers investors and creditors with a general
overview of the Citys finances and to demonstrate the Citys accountability for the money it receives If you have

questions about this report or need additional financial information contact the Citys Financial Services Department
Attn Budget Manager 121 West 7h Plainview Texas 79072 call 806 2961130 or amail

ikellerciplainviewtxus
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

EXHIBIT A1

Primary Government

Business

Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments Current

Receivables net of allowance for uncollectibles
Internal Balances

Inventories

Investments Joint Venture

Restricted Assets

Temporarily Restricted

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Permanently Restricted

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Capital Assets

Land

Infrastructure net

Buildings net

Improvements other than Buildings net

Machinery and Equipment net

Construction in Progress
Water Supply Contract Costs net

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs

Total Assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable
Accrued Interest Payable
Payable from Restricted Assets

Noncurrent Liabilities

Due Within One Year

Due in More Than One Year

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt

Restricted for

Restricted for Debt Service

Restricted for Tourism

Restricted for Economic Development
Restricted for Law Enforcement

Restricted for Municipal Court

Restricted for Library
Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

8576825 4679885 13256710

7500025 3184518 10684543
1417502 1053437 2470939

43790 43790
93046 153632 246678

1364357 1364357

279521 279521

1346558 1346558
900000 900000

519919 529367 1049286
4752863 4752863
1659455 747037 2406492

22893000 22893000
2220667 2275361 4496028
6760 913729 920489

7230725 7230725
122060 122060

28067629 46352620 74420249

786622 338220 1124842
43701 43701

1359281 1359281

898163 898163

861139 14359074 15220213

1647 761 1699843 9 18646200

9159664 19280212 28439876

249382 249382
394591 394591

408341 408341

4682 4682

70799 70799

6909 6909

16374882 9824587 26199469

26419868 S 29354181 55774049

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Program Revenues

Operating

Charges for Grants and

Expenses Services Contributions

Primary Government

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

General Government Administration

General Government Other

Public Safety
Public Works

Health

Recreation and Culture

Total Governmental Activities

BUSINESSTYPE ACTIVITIES

Solid Waste Management Fund

Water and Sewer Fund

Theatre Arts Fund

Total BusinessType Activities

TOTAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

760653 7848

603422 197933 96782

5975267 701235 31493

1197307
3 86 649 140023 159943

1013098 53713 6604

9936396 1100752 294822

2201151 2731076
5379624 5852233

17549559 9704219 295822

General Revenues

Taxes

Property Taxes Levied for General Purposes
Sales Taxes

Selective Sales and Use Tax

Franchise Taxes

Penalty and Interest

Miscellaneous Revenue

Investment Earnings
Special Item

Transfers In Out

Total General Revenues Special Items and Transfers

Change in Net Assets

Net AssetsBeginning

Net AssetsEnding

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT B1

Net Expense Revenue and

Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Governmental Businesstype
Activities Activities Total

752805 752805
308707 308707
5242539 5242539
1197307 1197307
86683 86683

529925 529925
472609 472609
11230 11230

8540822 991304 7549518

3777277 3777277
3523496 3523496
322021 322021

1391824 1391824
61680 61680

39827 333397 373224

567919 319079 886998

1272713 1272713
460018 460018

11416775 192458 11609233

2875953 1183762 4059715
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Total

General Other Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments Current

Interest Receivable investments

Taxes Receivable

Allowance for Uncollectible Taxes credit
Receivables Net
Intergovernmental Receivables

Due from Other Funds

Inventories

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Wages and Salaries Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds

Deferred Revenues

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved For

Inventories

Noncurrent Loans

Unreserved and Undesignated
Reported in the General Fund

Reported in the Special Revenue Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

2900968 2589702 5490670
5102740 5102740

7313 7313

1270328 23136 1293464

324245 324245
120460 214183 334643

35264 6544 41808
94963 94963

49183 49183

9256974 2833565 12090539

223679 22263 245942
323185 3350 326535

5292 5292
7208 7208

242299 242299

801663 25613 827276

49183 49183
211258 211258

8406128 8406128
2596694 2596694

8455311 2807952 11263263

9256974 2833565 12090539

EXHIBIT C1

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO THE

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

11263263Total Fund Balances Governmental Funds

The City uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities such as

insurance equipment replacement and vehicle maintenance to appropriate functions

in other funds The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds are included in

governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in governmental funds At the end of the year the

original cost of these assets was21696919 and the accumulated depreciation was

14451562

The Citys investment in joint venture is not reported in the governmental funds but

is included in the statement of net assets

Other adjustments are necessary to convert from the modified accrual basis of

accounting to the accrual basis of accounting Net property taxes receivable of

242299 and net fines receivable of60689 were unavailable to pay for current

period expenditures and are deferred in the governmental funds but included in the

statement of net assets

Longterm liabilities for compensated absences are not due and payable in the

current period and therefore are not reported as liabilities in the governmental funds

but are included in the statement of net assets

Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

EXHIBIT C2

7100843

7245357

1364357

302988

856940

26419868
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EXHIBIT C3

CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Total

General Other Governmental

Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES

Taxes

Property Taxes 3768012 3768012

General Sales and Use Taxes 3523496 3523496

Selective Sales and Use Tax 28171 293850 322021

Franchise Tax 1391824 1391824

Penalty and Interest on Taxes 61680 61680

Licenses and Permits 48800 48800

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 198015 90395 288410

Charges for Services 742441 742441

Fines 286414 19278 305692

Investment Earnings 309551 79160 388711

Rents and Royalties 360 360

Contributions Donations 25 6387 6412

Other Revenue 13077 27450 40527

Total Revenues 10371866 516520 10888386

EXPENDITURES

Current

General Government Administration 540589 207871 748460

General Government Other 467392 98493 565885

Public Safety 5828529 5828529

Public Works 830318 830318

Health 381296 381296

Recreation and Culture 955160 955160

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay 92908 78307 171215

Total Expenditures 9096192 384671 9480863

Excess of Revenues Over 1275674 131849 1407523

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Transfers In 416018 584000 1000018

Transfers Out Use 759000 31000 790000

Total Other Financing Sources Uses 342982 553000 210018

Net Change in Fund Balances 932692 684849 1617541

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning 7522619 2123103 9645722

Fund Balance September 30 Ending 8455311 2807952 11263263

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT C4

CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Total Net Change in Fund Balances Governmental Funds

The city uses internal service funds to charge the costs of certain activities primarily to

the governmental funds The net income of those activities not allocated to business

type activities is reported with the governmental activities

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures However in the statement

of activities the costs of those assets are reported as increases in capital assets

Depreciation is not recognized as an expense in governmental funds since it does not

require the use of current financial resources

Losses on the retirement of capital assets are not reported in the governmental funds

since they do not require the use of current financial resources

Capital assets contributed to the City by the State of Texas are not reported in the

governmental funds Such contributed capital assets consisted of the States portion of

the cost of the completed HikeBike Trail This contribution is reported as a special
item on the statment of actvities

The net decrease for the year in the investment in joint venture is not reported in the

governmental funds but is included in the statement of activities

Changes in longterm liabilities for compensated absences are not reported in the

governmental funds but are included in the statement of activities

Various reclassifications and eliminations are necessary to convert from the modified

accrual basis of accounting to accrual basis of accounting These include recognizing
deferred revenue as revenue adjusting current year revenue to include the revenue

earned from the current years tax levy and eliminating interfund transactions This

adjustment includes a net increase in property tax revenues of9265 and a net increase

in fine revenues of3820

Change in Net Assets of Governmental Activities

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

1617541

313003

171215

474380

921

1272713

29328

6975

13085

2875953
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

BusinessType Activities

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 1815461 2776423

Investments Current 682091 2502427

Restricted Assets Current

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 279521

Interest Receivable Investments 2805 3502

Accounts ReceivableNetof Uncollectible Allowance 352352 694703

Due from Other Funds

Inventories 153374

Total Current Assets 2852709 6409950

Noncurrent Assets

Restricted Assets Noncurrent

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 979333 367225

Restricted Investments 900000

Capital Assets

Land 400000 124367

Buildings 319902 2265398

Accumulated Depreciation Buildings 101567 1761821

Improvements other than Buildings 4528107 30621057

Accumulated Depreciation Other Improvements 3420322 8835842

Machinery and Equipment 4280003 1039037

Accumulated Depreciation Machinery Equipment 2209961 837579

Construction in Progress 665021 248708

Water Supply Contract Costs net 7230725

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 77286 44774

Total Noncurrent Assets 6417802 30506049

Total Assets 9270511 36915999

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

BusinessType Activities

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable
Wages and Salaries Payable
Compensated Absences Payable
Due to Other Funds

Accrued Interest Payable
Bonds Payable Current

Certificates of Obligation
Water Contract Obligations

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities

Bonds Payable NonCurrent

Certificates of Obligation
Water Contract Obligations

Unamortized Premiums Discounts on Bonds

Payable from Restricted Assets Noncurrent

Landfill ClosurePostclosure Costs

Deposits and Escrow

Compensated Absences Payable

Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

NET ASSETS

Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt

Restricted for Debt Service

Unrestricted Net Assets

Total Net Assets

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service
fund activities related to enterprise funds

Net assets of business type activities

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund

116075 117257

37278 59892
2790 3184

11703 4578

13562 30139

190000 430000

278163

371408 923213

1360000 7085000

5828351

9243

992056

367225

24255 52225

2385554 13332801

2756962 14256014

3866504 15379722

249382

2647045 7030881

6513549 22659985

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

BusinessType Activities

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund

OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services 2731076 5852233

Other Revenue 127291 59851

Total Operating Revenues 2858367 5912084

OPERATING EXPENSES

Personnel Services Salaries and Wages 597149 955738

Personnel Services Employee Benefits 252206 371463

Purchased Professional Technical Services 219784 470161

Purchased Property Services 191226 398310

Other Operating Expenses 180462 731062

Supplies 301665 735405

Depreciation and Amortization 396336 1032018

Total Operating Expenses 2138828 4694157

Operating Income Loss 719539 1217927

NONOPERATING REVENUES EXPENSES
Gain on Sale of Property 145865

Contributions Private Source

Investment Earnings 120615 196161

Bond Premium Accretion 342

Interest Expense 11265 684143

Bond Issuance Cost Amortization 2862 3634

Total Nonoperating Revenue Expenses 252695 491616

Income Loss Before Transfers 972234 726311

Transfers In

Transfers Out 161300 329718

Change in Net Assets 810934 396593

Total Net Assets October 1 Beginning 5702615 22263392

Total Net Assets September 30 Ending 6513549 22659985

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service

fund activities related to enterprise funds

Change in net assets of business type activities on Exhibit B1

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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EXHIBIT D2

Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Total

Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Fund Funds Service Funds

20158 8603467 1830573
48 187190 59652

20206 8790657 1890225

8184 1561071 114380

2575 626244 46356
689945 2344

2196 591732 72007
4655 916179 1401341
12572 1049642 29460
2206 1430560 386288

32388 6865373 2052176

12182 1925284 161951

145865 140
1000 1000
2303 319079 179208

342

695408
6496

3303 235618 179068

8879 1689666 17117

31000 31000 250000

491018

22121 1229648 267117

98455 28064462 6893797

120576 29294110 7160914

45886

1183762
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

BusinessType Activities

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Received from User Charges 2680112 5895009

Cash Payments to Employees for Services 836701 1295984

Cash Payments for Suppliers 759617 2358117

Other Operating Cash Receipts Payments 127291 59851

Net Cash Provided by Used for Operating
1211085 2300759

Activities

Cash Flows from NonCapital Financing Activities

Increasedecrease in Deposits and Escrow Held 8267

Operating Transfers From To Other Funds 161300 329718

Contributions and Donations from Private Sources

Net Cash Provided by Used for NonCapital
161300 321451

Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Capital Related FinancinActivities

Acquisition of Capital Assets 1275192 364140

Issuance of Certificates of Obligation 1479437

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets 146000

Principal and Interest Paid on LongTerm Debt 1361296

Net Cash Provided by Used for Capital
350245 1725436

Related Financing Activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of Certificates of Deposit 1582091 2502427

Interest and Dividends on Investments 117810 192660

Net Cash Provided by Used for Investing
1464281 2309767

Activities

Net IncreaseDecrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 64251 2055895

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 2859045 5479064

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 2794794 3423169

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement

26



EXHIBIT D3 Contd

Governmental
Activities

Nonmajor Total Total

Enterprise Enterprise Internal

Fund Funds Service Funds

20083 8595204 1840176

10566 2143251 157073

21714 3139448 1387036
48 187190 55446

12149 3499695 351513

8267

31000 460018 250000

1000 1000

32000 450751 250000

1639332 654613
1479437

146000

1361296

1375191 654613

4084518 2397285
2303 312773 176673

2303 3771745 2220612

22154 2097992 2273712

65847 8403956 5359867

88001 6305964 3086155
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

BusinessType Activities

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund

Reconciliation of Operating Income Loss to Net Cash

Provided By Used For Operating Activities

Operating Income Loss 719539 1217927

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income

to Net Cash Provided by Used For Operating Activities

Depreciation and Amortization 396336 1032018

Landfill ClosurePostclosure Costs 70375

Effect of Increases and Decreases in Current

Assets and Liabilities

Decrease increase in Receivables 50964 42776

Decrease increase in Inventories 20689

Decrease increase in Interfund Receivables

Increase decreasein Accounts Payable 70463 4765

Increase decrease in Wages Salaries Payable 13382 20397

Increase decrease in Comp Absences Payable 728 10820

Increase decrease in Interfund Payables 7318 2275

Net Cash Provided by Used for
1211085 2300759

Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Total Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash Cash Equiv Statement of Net Assets 1815461 2776423

Restricted Cash Statement of Net Assets 979333 646746

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents 2794794 3423169

Noncash Investing Capital and Financing Activities

Book Value of Capital Asset Dispositons 136

Bond Issuance Premium 9585

Bond Issuance Premium Accretion 342

Bond Issuance Costs 80148

Bond Issuance Cost Amortization 2862 3634

The notes to the Financial Statements are an integral part of this statement
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

A Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The accompanying fmancial statements of the City of Plainview the City have been prepared in conformity with

accounting principles applicable to governmental units which are generally accepted in the United States of America The

Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB is the accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles

1 Reporting Entity

The Citys financial statements include the accounts of all its operations The City evaluated whether any other entity
should be included in these financial statements The criteria for including organizations as component units within

the Citys reporting entity as set forth in GASB Statement No 14 The Financial Reporting Entity as amended by
GASB Statement No 39 include whether

the organization is legally separate can sue and be sued in its name
the City holds the corporation powers of the organization
the City appoints a voting majority of the organizations board

the City is able to impose its will on the organization
the organization has the potential to impose a financial benefitburden on the City
there is fiscal dependency by the organization on the City

the exclusion of the organization would result in misleading or incomplete financial statements

The City also evaluated any legally separate taxexempt organizations whose resources are used principally to provide

support to the City to determine if its omission from the reporting entity would result in financial statements which are

misleading or incomplete GASB Statement No 14 as amended by GASB Statement No 39 requires inclusion of

such an organization as a component unit when 1 The economic resources received or held by the organization are

entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of the City its component units or its constituents and 2 The City or

its component units are entitled to or have the ability to otherwise access a majority of the economic resources

received or held by the organization and 3 Such economic resources are significant to the City

Based on these criteria the City has no component units Additionally the City is not a component unit of any other

reporting entity as defined by the GASB Statements

2 Basis of Presentation Basis of Accounting

a Basis of Presentation

Governmentwide Statements The statement of net assets and the statement of activities include the

financial activities of the overall government Eliminations have been made to minimize the doublecounting
of internal activities These statements distinguish between the governmental and businesstype activities of

the City Governmental activities generally are fmanced through taxes intergovernmental revenues and

other nonexchange transactions Businesstype activities are fmanced in whole or in part by fees charged to

external parties

The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for the

different businesstype activities of the City and for each function of the Citys governmental activities

Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and therefore are

clearly identifiable to a particular function The City does not allocate indirect expenses in the statement of

activities Program revenues include a fees fines and charges paid by the recipients of goods or services

offered by the programs and b grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or

capital requirements of a particular program Revenues that are not classified as program revenues including
all taxes are presented as general revenues

Fund Financial Statements The fund fmancial statements provide information about the Citys funds with

separate statements presented for each fund category The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

governmental and enterprise funds each displayed in a separate column All remaining governmental and

enterprise funds are aggregated and reported as nonmajor funds

Proprietary fund operating revenues such as charges for services result from exchange transactions

associated with principal activity of the fund Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives

and gives up essentially equal values Nonoperating revenues such as subsidies and investment earnings

result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities

The City reports the following major governmental funds

General Fund This is the Citys primary operating fund It accounts for all financial resources of the City

except those required to be accounted for in another fund

The City reports the following major enterprise funds

Solid Waste Management Fund This fund accounts for the solid waste and disposal activities of the City

including the activities of the City of Plainview Municipal Solid Waste Landfill

Water and Sewer Fund This fund accounts for the water supply and distribution sanitary sewer storm

water and waste water treatment activities of the City

In addition the City reports the following fund types

Internal Service Funds These funds are used to account for revenues and expenses related to services

provided to parties inside the City These funds facilitate distribution of support costs to the users of support

services on acostreimbursement basis Because the principal users of the internal services are the Citys

governmental activities this fund type is included in the Governmental Activities column of the

governmentwide fmancial statements

b Measurement Focus Basis of Accounting

Governmentwide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements These financial statements are reported using

the economic resources measurement focus The governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements

are reported using the accrual basis of accounting Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are

recorded at the time liabilities are incurred regardless of when the related cash flows take place

Nonexchange transactions in which the City gives or receives value without directly receiving or giving

equal value in exchange include property taxes grants entitlements and donations On an accrual basis

revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied Revenue from

grants entitlements and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have

been satisfied

Governmental Fund Financial Statements Governmental funds are reported using the current financial

resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting Under this method revenues are

recognized when measurable and available The City considers all revenues reported in the governmental
funds to be available if the revenues are collected within sixty days after yearend Revenues from local

sources consist primarily of property taxes Property tax revenues and revenues received from the State are

recognized under the susceptibletoaccrual concept Miscellaneous revenues are recorded as revenue when

received in cash because they are generally not measurable and available Expenditures are recorded when

the related fund liability is incurred except for principal and interest on general longterm debt claims and

judgments and compensated absences which are recognized as expenditures to the extent they have

matured General capital assets acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental funds Proceeds of

general longterm debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as other financing sources

When the City incurs an expenditure or expense for which both restricted and unrestricted resources may be

used it is the Citys policy to use restricted resources first then unrestricted resources
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Under GASB Statement No 20 Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and Other

Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting all proprietary funds continue to follow

Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB standards issued on or before November 30 1989

However from that date forward proprietary funds have the option of either 1 choosing not to apply future

FASB standards including amendments of earlier pronouncements or 2 continuing to follow new FASB

pronouncements unless they conflict with GASB guidance The City has chosen not to apply future FASB

standards

3 Financial Statement Amounts

a Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows highly liquid investments are considered to be cash equivalents if

they have a maturity of three months or less when purchased

b Property Taxes

Property taxes are levied by October 1 on the assessed value listed as of the prior January 1 for all real and

business personal property in conformity with Subtitle E Texas Property Tax Code Taxes are due on receipt of

the tax bill and are delinquent if not paid before February 1 of the year following the year in which imposed On

January 1 of each year a tax lien attaches to property to secure the payment of all taxes penalties and interest

ultimately imposed Property tax revenues are considered available 1 when they become due or past due and

receivable within the current period and 2 when they are expected to be collected during a 60day period after

the close of the fiscal year

Allowances for uncollectible tax receivables within the General Fund are based upon historical experience in

collecting property taxes Uncollectible personal property taxes are periodically reviewed and written off but the

City is prohibited from writing off real property taxes without specific statutory authority from the Texas

Legislature

c Inventories

Inventories are stated at lower of cost or market value using the firstin firstout method Inventory items are

recorded as expenditures when they are consumed

d Capital Assets

Purchased or constructed capital assets are reported at cost or estimated historical cost Donated fixed assets are

recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that

do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized A capitalization

threshold of2000 is used
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Capital assets are being depreciated using the straightline method over the following estimated useful lives

Asset Class Years

Infrastructure 20

Buildings 40

Building Improvements 20

System and Improvements 3360

Vehicles 57

Office Equipment 10

Computer Equipment 35

e Receivable and Payable Balances

The City believes that sufficient detail of payable balances is provided in the financial statements to avoid the

obscuring of significant components by aggregation Therefore no disclosure is provided which disaggregates
those balances Details of receivable balances are presented in Note C

f Compensated Absences

Sick Leave

All fulltime employees except Police Fire and EMS employees accumulate sick leave at the rate of one day per

month for the first year of employment Thereafter six days per year are eligible for accumulation up to a

maximum of 60 days Employees are paid annually for unused sick leave days not eligible for accumulation at

the rate of 30 per day However since no payment for accumulated unused sick leave days is made upon

termination of employment and therefore does not vest no liability for such accumulated unused sick leave is

recorded

Certified Police officers accrue sick leave at the rate of ten hours per month the equivalent of 15 days per year

and may accumulate up to a maximum of 720 hours Fire and EMS personnel accrue sick leave at the rate of 15

hours per month the equivalent of 15 days per year and may accumulate a maximum of 1080 hours Police

Fire and EMS employees are paid for unused accumulated sick leave upon termination of employment

Vacation

Certified Police officers Fire and EMS personnel accrue vacation leave at the rate of 15 days per year All other

eligible employees with less than five years of continuous service accrue ten days per year while those

employees with five or more years of continuous service accrue 15 days per year Generally such vacation leave

may be accumulated up to 20 days for employees with less than five years of continuous service and up to 25

days for employees with five or more years of continuous service

The estimated current portion of the liability for vested sick leave and vacation benefits amibutable to the Citys

governmental funds is recorded as an expenditure and liability in the respective funds while the noncurrent

portion is not reflected in the governmental fund financial statements but is reflected as a liability and expense in

the Governmentwide financial statements Both the current and noncurrent amounts attributable to proprietary
funds are charged to expense and a corresponding liability is recorded in the applicable funds
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

g Interfund Activity

Interfund activity results from loans services provided reimbursements or transfers between funds Loans are

reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon consolidation

Services provided deemed to be at market or near market rates are treated as revenues and expenditures or

expenses Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost charges the appropriate benefiting fund and

reduces its related cost as a reimbursement All other interfund transactions are treated as transfers Transfers In

and Transfers Out are netted and presented as a single Transfers line on the governmentwide statement of

activities Similarly interfund receivables and payables are netted and presented as a single Interfund Balances

line on the governmentwide statement of net assets

B Deposits and Investments

Citv Policies and Leal and Contractual Provisions Governing Deposits

Custodial Credit Risk or Deposits State law requires governmental entities to contract with financial institutions in

which funds will be deposited to secure those deposits with insurance or pledged securities with a fair value equaling or

exceeding the amount on deposit at the end of each business day The pledged securities must be in the name of the

governmental entity and held by the entity or its agent Since the City complied with this law for the year ended

September 30 2008 it had no custodial credit risk for deposits

City Policies and Leal and Contractual Provisions Governing Investments

Compliance with the Public Funds Investment Act The Public Funds Investment Act Government Code Chapter 2256

contains specific provisions in the areas of investment practices management reports and establishment of appropriate

policies Among other things it requires a governmental entity to adopt implement and publicize an investment policy
That policy must address the following areas 1 safety of principal and liquidity 2 portfolio diversification 3

allowable investments 4 acceptable risk levels 5 expected rates of return 6 maximum allowable stated maturity of

portfolio investments 7 maximum average dollarweighted maturity allowed based on the stated maturity date for the

portfolio 8 investment staff quality and capabilities 9 and bid solicitation preferences for certificates of deposit

Statutes authorize the entity to invest in 1 obligations of the US Treasury certain US agencies and the State of Texas

2 certificates of deposit 3 certain municipal securities 4 money market savings accounts 5 repurchase agreements

6 bankers acceptances 7 mutual funds 8 investment pools 9 guaranteed investment contracts 10 and common

trust funds The Act also requires the entity to have independent auditors perform test procedures related to investment

practices as provided by the Act Management believes that the City is in substantial compliance with the requirements of

the Act and with local policies

As of September 30 2008 and for the year then ended the City had no investments other than nonmarketable certificates

of deposit
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

C Receivables

The receivables detailed below are reported net of allowances for doubtful accounts on the Governmentwide Statement of

Net Assets as of September 30 2008

Description Receivable Allowance Amount

Governmental Activities

Property Taxes 571230 324245 246985

Sales Taxes 305694 305694

Franchise Taxes 416540 416540

Special Assessments 93560 93560
Accounts

Emergency Medical Services 265682 151439 114243

Municipal Court Fines 404596 343907 60689

Other 10437 10437

Accrued Interest Receivable 9848 9848

Intergovernmental 41808 41808

Economic Development Loans 211258 211258

Total 2330653 913151 1417502

Businesstype Activities

Accounts 1051879 4749 1047130

Accrued Interest Receivable 6307 6307

Total 1058186 4749 1053437

Total 3388839 917900 2470939

Significant receivables that are not expected to be collected within one year include property taxes receivable accounts

receivable and notes receivable amounting to approximately 470000

D Interfund Balances and Activity

1 Due To and From Other Funds

Balances due to and due from other funds at the fund level at September 30 2008 consisted of the following

Due To Fund Due From Fund Amount Purpose

General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Fund BioTerrorism Fund activities

General Fund Internal Service Fund 94963 Service Center Fund activities

Internal Service Fund General Fund 7208 Internal services

Internal Service Fund Solid Waste Management Fund 11703 Internal services

Internal Service Fund Water and Sewer Fund 4578 Internal services

Total 118452

All of the above amounts are scheduled to be repaid within one year

An additional 60071 is included in internal balances in the governmentwide statement of net assets to reflect the

cumulative amount of crossover adjustments made to consolidate the allocable portion of Internal Service Fund

activities related to the Businesstype Activities
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

2 Transfers To and From Other Funds

Transfers to and from other funds for the year ended September 30 2008 consisted of the following

Transfers From Transfers To Amount

250000

100000

175000

34000

150000

50000

279718

25000

25000

136300

25000

31000

1281018

Reason

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Water and Sewer Fund

Water and Sewer Fund

Water and Sewer Fund

Solid Waste Mgmt Fund

Solid Waste Mgmt Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Internal Service Fund

Internal Service Fund

General Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Fund

Internal Service Fund

General Fund

Internal Service Fund

Nonmajor Busn Type Activities

Total

E Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents and Restricted Investments

Capital improvements
Street improvements
Economic development
Home Program

Equipment replacement
Service center operations
Transfer in lieu of taxes

Economic development
Service center operations
Transfer in lieu of taxes

Service center operations
Theatre arts

Restricted cash and cash equivalents and investments consisted of the following at September 30 2008

Description Amount

Businesstype Activities

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
ShortTerm

Water and Sewer Fund

Debt Service

LongTerm
Solid Waste Management Fund

Capital Projects Unspent Bond Proceeds
Landfill Closure and Postclosure

Total Solid Waste Management Fund

Water Sewer Fund

Customer DepositsEscrow
Total LongTerm

Restricted Investments

LongTerm
Solid Waste Management Fund

Landfill Closure and Postclosure

279521

887277

92056

979333

367225

1346558

900000
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Depreciation was charged to functions as follows

Governmental Activities

General Government Administration 25579

General Government Other 164

Public Safety 59508

Public Works 340412

Health 1104

Recreation and Culture 47614

Depreciation for capital assets of internal service

funds is allocated to various functions

based on usage of the assets 386288

Total Depreciation Governmental Activities 860669

Businesstype Activities

Solid Waste Management 396336

Water and Sewer 927640

Theatre Arts 2206

Total Depreciation Businesstype Activities 1326182

G Other Assets

Other assets of the Citys businesstype activities consisted of the following at year end

Solid Waste Water

Management and Sewer

Fund Fund Total

Water Supply Contract Costs Note J 8872253 8872253

Less Accumulated Amortization 1641528 1641528

Water Supply Contract Costs net 7230725 7230725

Bond Issuance Costs 80148 66980 147128

Less Accumulated Amortization 2862 222061 25068

Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs 77286 44774 122060

H Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue reported on the Balance SheetGovernmental Funds consisted of the following at year end

Deferred

Description Fund Amount

Property Taxes General 242299
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

I Liabilities Payable from Restricted Assets

Liabilities payable from restricted assets consisted of the following as of September 30 2008

Description Amount

Businesstype Activities

Water and Sewer Fund

Customer DepositsBscrow 367225
Solid Waste Management Fund

Landfill Closure and Postclosure 992056

Total 1359281

J LongTerm Obliatgions

1 LongTerm Obligation Activity

Longterm obligations include debt and other longterm liabilities Changes in longterm obligations for the period

ended September 30 2008 are as follows

Amounts

Beginning Ending Due Within

Balance Increases Decreases Balance One Year

Governmental activities

Compensated absences 858904 7707

Total governmental activities 858904 7707

Businesstype activities

Tax and revenue certificates

of obligation 7925000 1550000

Bond premium net 9585

Water contract obligations 6372027

Compensated absences 72362 10092

Total businesstype activities 14369389 1569677

866611 5472

866611 5472

410000 9065000 620000

342 9243

265513 6106514 278163

82454 5974

675855 15263211 904137

The funds typically used to liquidate compensated absences in the past are as follows

Liability Activity Type Fund

Compensated absences Governmental General Fund

Compensated absences Businesstype Solid Waste Management Fund

Compensated absences Businesstype Water and Sewer Fund
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2 Debt Service Requirements

Debt service requirements for longterm debt at September 30 2008 are as follows

Year Ended September 30
2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

20142018

20192023

20242027

Totals

3 Interest Costs Incurred

Businesstvpe Activities

Principal Interest Total

898163 713457 1611620

935303 664493 1599796

970575 623687 1594262

1014145 581021 1595166

1058529 535979 1594508

5236954 1929797 7166751

3961842 706146 4667988

1096003 84476 1180479

15171514 5839056 21010570

Longterm debt interest cost incurred for Businesstype Activities for the year ended September 30 2008 was as

follows

Interest Charged to Expense 697706
Interest Capitalized 2298

Total Interest Cost Incurred 695408

The interest charged to expense was included as a direct nonoperating expense in the Statement of Activities in the

Businesstype activities

4 Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation

While the Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation are secured by ad valorem taxes levied by the City they are

additionally payable from and secured by a lien on and pledge of the net revenues of the Enterprise Funds Since it is

the intent of the City to service the debt entirely from the net revenues of the Enterprise Funds the liabilities for the

debt are recorded in the Businesstype Activities rather than the Governmental Activities of the City

There are a number of limitations and restrictions contained in the bond indenture Management has indicated that the

City is in compliance with all significant limitations and restrictions

Details pertaining to the outstanding Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation as of September 30 2008 are as

follows

Description

2001 Tax and Revenue

Certificates of Obligation
2008 Tax and Revenue

Certificates of Obligation

Purpose Maturity Interest Rates Balance

Waste water treatment plant

Landfill cell and water and

sewer system improvements

03012021

0301 2015

45 to 55 7515000

350 1550000

9065000
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5 Continuing Disclosure

The City has entered into a continuing disclosure undertaking to provide Annual Reports and Material Event Notices

to the State Information Depository of Texas which is the Municipal Advisory Council This information is required
under SEC Rule 15c212 to enable investors to analyze the financial condition and operations of the City

6 Surface Water Supply Contract Obligations

A significant portion of the Citys water is supplied by a series of underground wells together with surface water

which is purchased from the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority CRMWA CRMWA is a water district that

was created in 1953 by the Texas legislature to construct a dam water reservoir and aqueduct system for the purpose

of supplying water to surrounding cities Its geographic area includes the surface water in the Texas Panhandle known

as Lake Meredith a series of underground wells and the aqueduct system which supplies 11 cities In connection

with the financing of the initial construction project and subsequent projects undertaken by CRMWA the City is

obligated for its proportionate share of CRMWA debt as follows

Description Maturity

USBR Series 1999 10012008

Salinity Control Series 1999 02152010

1999 Groundwater Second Series 02152020

Series 2005 Conjunctive Supply Project 02152025

Series 2006 Conjunctive Supply Project 02152027

Total

Interest Rates Balance

38 to 39 519691
38 to 39 23761
44 to45 2035921
30 to525 1768876
425 to 50 1758265

6106514

The 11 cities that are members of the aqueduct system have the right to elect the 19 members of the CRMWA

governing board The Citys contractual share of the available water is approximately3691 Each member may

sell part or all of its rights under the contract to other members of the aqueduct system Each member city is assessed

its proportionate share of operating costs which are accounted for by the City as operating costs Although member

cities have the right to elect the members of the CRMWA board the City does not report this contract as a joint
venture due to the following factors 1 CRMWA was created by the State of Texas and is a subdivision thereof as

opposed to having been created by the members of CRMWA 2 The City has no vested rights to the assets of

CRMWA nor responsibility for its liabilities other than the Citys proportionate share of the contractual construction

obligations

The financial statements of CRMWA as of September 30 2008 and for the year then ended reflect the following

Assets 9302008

Current assets 35572580

Noncurrent assets 365771938
Liabilities

Current liabilities 8559848

Noncurrent liabilities 140377869

Net Assets

Invested in capital assets net of related debt 70749580

Restricted 168363853

Unrestricted 13293368

Total Net Assets 252406801

Operating revenues 13222676

Operating expenses 15491540

Nonoperating revenues and expenses net 1461784

Transfer from reserve 35004
Increase in net assets 842084
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Transactions between CRMWA and the City consisted of payments to CRMWA for the Citys share of costs of

operations water pumping and chemical costs and debt service as follows for the year ended September 30 2008

Costs of operations 156466
Water pumping and chemical costs 265060
Debt service 579785

Total 1001311

The Citys costs of its rights to the surface and ground water are recorded in the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund and

are being amortized over 85 years which is the estimated useful life of the CRMWA facilities and water basis Such

costs that have been capitalized by the City as of September 30 2008 are as follows

Capitalized contract costs 8872253
Accumulated amortization 1641528

Net unamortized costs 7230725

K Employee Retirement Benefits

1 Texas Municipal Retirement System

Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its eligible fulltime employees except firefighters through a

nontraditional joint contributory hybrid defined benefit plan administered by the statewide Texas Municipal
Retirement System TMRS The Citys plan is one of 827 currently administered by TMRS an agent multiple

employer public employee retirement system

Benefits

Upon retirement benefits depend on the sum of the employees contributions with interest and the cityfinanced

monetary credits with interest Cityfinanced monetary credits are composed of three sources prior service credits

current service credits and updated service credits At the inception of each citys plan the city granted monetary

credits for service rendered before the plan began or prior service credits of a theoretical amount that is at least equal

to two times what would have been contributed by the employee with interest 3 annual prior to establishment of

the plan Monetary credits for service since each plan began or current service credits are a percent 100 150 or

200 of the employees accumulated contributions In addition each city can grant either annually or on an annually

repeating basis another type of monetary credit referred to as Updated Service Credit This monetary credit is

determined by hypothetically recomputing the members account balance by assuming that the current member

deposit rate of the currently employing city56 or 7 has always been in effect The computation also assumes

that the members salary has always been the members average salary using a salary calculation based on the 36

month period ending a year before the effective date of calculation This hypothetical account balance is increased by

3 each year not the actual interest credited to member accounts in previous years and increased by the city match

currently in effect 100 150 or 200 The resulting sum is then compared to the members actual account

balance increased by the actual city match and actual interest credited If the hypothetical calculation exceeds the

actual calculation the member is granted a monetary credit or Updated Service Credit equal to the difference

between the hypothetical calculation and the actual calculation At retirement the benefit is calculated as if the sum of

the employees contributions with interest and the cityfmanced monetary credits with interest were used to purchase

an annuity Members may choose to receive their retirement benefit in one of seven payment options retiree life only

one of three lifetime survivor options or one of three guaranteed term options Members may also choose to receive a

portion of their benefit as a Partial Lump Sum Distribution PLSD in an amount equal to 12 24 or 36 monthly

payments under the retiree life only option which cannot exceed 75 of the total member deposits and interest A

member city may elect to increase the annuities of its retirees either annually or on an annually repeating basis

effective January 1 of a calendar year Cities may adopt annuity increases at a rate equal to either 30 50 or 70

of the increase if any in the Consumer Price Index all Urban Consumers CPIU between the December
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preceding the members retirement date and the December one year before the effective date of the increase minus

any previously granted increases Members in most cities can retire at age 60 and above with 5 or more years of

service or with 20 years of service regardless of age Some cities have elected retirement eligibility with 25 years of

service regardless of age Most plans also provide death benefits and all provide disability benefits

Effective January 1 2002 members are vested after 5 years unless a city opted to maintain 10year vesting The plan

provisions are adopted by the governing body of each city within the options available in the state statutes governing
TMRS Members may work for more than one TMRS city during their career If an individual has become vested in

one TMRS city he or she is immediately vested upon employment with another TMRS city Similarly once a

member has met the eligibility requirements for retirement in a TMRS city he or she is eligible in other TMRS cities

as well

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City within the options available in the state statutes

governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes Plan provisions for the City were as follows

Number of participating cities

Employee deposit rate

Matching rate City to employee
Years required for vesting
Service retirement eligibility
expressed asageyears of service

Updated service credit

Annually repeating
Annuity increase to retirees

Annually repeating
Supplemental death benefit

For active employees
For retirees

Contributions

2005 2006 2007

811 821 827

7 7 7

2 to 1 2 to 1 2 to 1

5 years 5 years 5 years

605025 605025 605025

100 100 100

Yes Yes Yes

70 70 70

Yes Yes Yes

No No No

No No No

The contribution rates for employees are either 5 6 or 7 of employee gross earnings and the city matching

percentages are either 100 150 or 200 both as adopted by the governing body of each city Under the state law

governing TMRS the contribution rate for each city is determined annually by the actuary using the Projected Unit

Credit actuarial cost method effective with the December 31 2007 actuarial valuation This rate consists of the

normal cost contribution rate and the prior service cost contribution rate The normal cost contribution rate finances

the currently accruing monetary credits due to the city matching percentage which are the obligation of the city as of

the employees retirement date not at the time the employees contributions are made A member citys retirement

contribution rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate both of which are

calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year The normal cost contribution rate finances the portion of

an active members projected benefit allocated annually the prior service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded

overfunded actuarial liability asset over the applicable period for that city Both the normal cost and prior service

contribution rates include recognition of the projected impact of annually repeating updates such as Updated Service

Credit and Annuity Increases The employer contribution rate cannot exceed a statutory maximum rate which is a

function of the employee contribution rate and the city matching percentage There is an optional higher maximum

that may be applied in certain circumstances if elected by the city or a city may elect to remove the maximum rate

For example with a 6 employee contribution rate and a city matching percentage of 200 the maximum employer
contribution rate is 125135 if the higher maximum is elected The maximum does not apply at all for cities

beginning participation on or after December 31 1999

Contributions are made monthly by both the employees and the member cities Since each member city must know its

contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes there is a oneyear delay between the actuarial valuation that

serves as the basis for the contribution rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect
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Funding Policy

Cities are required to contribute at actuarially determined rates these rates are provided to the City on an annual basis

following the completion of the actuarial valuation There is a time delay between the date of the valuation and the

date that the rate becomes effective for example the January 1 2007 contribution rate is based on the December 31
2005 valuation results If a change in plan provisions is elected by the City the rate can change While the actuary

determines contribution rates on a calendar year basis the City discloses the annual pension costs which equal the

required contributions on the calculated rates for the Citys fiscal year

Actuarial Information

Actuarial cost method

Amortization method

Amortization period
Asset valuation method

Assumptions
Investment return

Projected salary increases

Inflation

Costofliving adjustments
Cityspecific assumptions

Payroll growth assumption
Withdrawal rates for malefemale

low midlow mid midhigh or high

Funding Information

7

None

35

None

4

HighHigh

7

None

35

None

4

HighHigh

2006

Unit Credit

Level percent of

payroll
d 25 yearsopen perk

Amortized cost

Actuarial valuation date

Actuarial value of assets

Actuarial accrued liability

Percentage funded

Unfunded overfunded actuarial accrued liability UAAL
Annual covered payroll
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll

Net pension obligation NPO at the beginning of period
Annual pension cost

Annual required contribution ARC
Contributions made

NPO at the end of period

Annual Contribution Requirements

Fiscal Annual

Year Pension

Ended Cost APC
093006 582107
093007 607061
093008 645695

2005

Unit Credit

Level percent of

payroll
25 yearsopen perk

Amortized cost

12312007

14823076

20891460
710

6068384

5045994
1203

9302008

645695

645695

Amount of Percentage
Contribution ofAPC

Made Contributed

582107 100

607061 100

645695 100
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2007

Projected Unit Credit

Level percent of

payroll
d 30yearsclosed period

Amortized cost

7

Varies by age

and service

30

2130CPI

3

HighHigh
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The City is one of 827 municipalities currently having their benefit plan administered by TMRS Each of the 827

municipalities has an annual individual actuarial valuation performed All assumptions for the 12312007 valuations

are contained in the 2007 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report a copy of which may be obtained by

writing to PO Box 149153 Austin TX 787149153

Changes in Actuarial Cost Method and Assumptions

At its December 8 2007 meeting the TMRS Board of Trustees adopted actuarial assumptions to be used in the

actuarial valuation for the year ended December 31 2007 A summary of actuarial assumptions and definitions can be

found in the December 31 2007 TMRS Comprehensive Annual Financial Report CAFR

Since its inception TMRS has used the Unit Credit actuarial funding method This method accounts for liability
accrued as of the valuation date but does not project the potential future liability of provisions adopted by a city

Twothirds of the cities participating in TMRS have adopted the Updated Service Credit and Annuity Increases

provisions on an annually repeating basis For the December 31 2007 valuation the TMRS Board determined that

the Projected Unit Credit PUC funding method should be used which facilitates advance funding for future updated

service credits and annuity increases that are adopted on an annually repeating basis In addition the Board also

adopted a change in the amortization period from a 25year open to a 25year closed period TMRS Board of

Trustee rules provide that whenever a change in actuarial assumptions or methods results in a contribution rate

increase in an amount greater than 05 the amortization period will be increased to 30 years unless a city requests

that the period remain at 25 years For cities with repeating features these changes would likely result initially in

higher required contributions and lower funded ratios however the funded ratio should show steady improvement

over time To assist in this transition to higher rates the Board also approved an eightyear phasein period which

will allow cities the opportunity to increase their contributions gradually approx 125 each year to their full rate

or their required contribution rate

If the changes in actuarial funding method and assumptions had not been adopted for the 2007 valuation the Citys

unfunded actuarial accrued liability would have been3710911 and the funded ratio would have been 80

In addition TMRS is currently working on its legislative package for 2009 There is a possibility that the investment

rate of return IRR assumption of 7 would need to be lowered if desired legislation for the 2009 session is

unsuccessful Maintaining a 7 IRR assumption is contingent in part on the continued diversification of the TMRS

portfolio from an almost exclusive bond portfolio to a portfolio that includes equities as well If state legislation

needed to facilitate the continued diversification is not enacted TMRS may have to revisit the continued

diversification of the portfolio and consider reducing the assumed IRR A reduction in the IRR would result in

increased actuarial accrued liabilities thus causing further increases in city contribution rates following the December

31 2009 actuarial valuation

2 Firemens Relief and Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The Board of Trustees of the Firemens Relief and Retirement Fund of Plainview Texas the Plan is the

administrator of asingleemployer defined benefit pension plan The Board of Trustees consists of three firemen

elected by the members two citizens elected by the board and the City Mayor and Finance Director serving as ex

officio members Substantially all firefighters in the Plainview Fire Department are covered by the Plan The plan is

not subject to the provisions of the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 ERISA and was amended

and restated during 2005 The table below summarizes the membership of the Plan included in the actuarial valuation

as of December 31 2007 which is the date of the latest actuarial valuation
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Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 26

Vested terminated members 4

Active members

Electing DROP

Vested 5

Nonvested 28

Total 63

The Plan provides service retirement death disability and withdrawal benefits These benefits fully vest after 20

years of credited service with partial vesting available with 10 years of service Members hired before October 1

1994 may retire at age 50 with 20 years of service Members hired on or after October 1 1994 may retire at age 53

with 20 years of service As of the December 31 2007 actuarial valuation date the Plan provided a monthly normal

service retirement benefit payable in a joint and twothirds to spouse form of annuity equal to 6375 of highest 60

month average salary which is defined as the average biweekly pay multiplied by2167 Average biweekly pay is

the average of the firefighters total pay including regular longevity and overtime pay of the 130 consecutive

biweekly pay periods during which hisher total pay was highest plus an additional service benefit of 78 per month

for each whole year of service in excess of 20 years subject to a 15 year maximum A partial year of service is given

partial credit based on the number of months completed in excess of whole years

There is no provision for automatic postretirement benefit increases The Plan has the authority to provide and has in

the past provided for ad hoc postretirement benefit increases The benefit provisions of this plan are authorized by

the Texas Local Fire Fighters Retirement Act TLFFRA TLFFRA provides the authority and procedure to amend

benefit provisions

The contribution provisions of this plan are authorized by TLFFRA TLFFRA provides the authority and procedure to

change the amount of contributions determined as a percentage of pay by each firefighter and a percentage of payroll

by the City The costs of administering the Plan are fmanced from the trust

Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress

Actuarial valuation date 12312007

Actuarial value of assets 5828076

Actuarial accrued liability 10625354

Percentage funded 549

Unfunded overfunded actuarial accrued liability UAAL 4797278

Annual covered payroll 1480909

UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 3239

12312007

Net pension obligation NPO at the beginning of period
Annual pension cost

Annual required contribution ARC 206124

Contributions made 206124

NPO at the end of period
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Annual Contribution Requirement

Employer

Fiscal Annual Amount of

Year Pension Contribution

Ended Cost APC Made

123105 190473 190473
123106 187708 187708
123107 206124 206124

Employees

Percentage Net Pension

of APC Obligation
Contributed NPO

100

100

100

Currently active members are required to contribute 14 of covered pay For the fiscal year ended

December 31 2007 the employees contributed 206124 in addition to the employer 14 matching

contribution shown above Prior to September 30 2005 the contribution rates for the employer and

employees were 13 respectively

Actuarial assumptions were as follows

Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increases

Amortization Increase

Cost of Living Adjustments

Variation of Aggregate Entry Age Normal Method

Level Percentage of Pay
287 Years

As of 123107 Fair market value of the fund Prior to

123107 Smoothed value based on a deferral

recognition method recognizing 20 of the actual

investment return each year during the last five years

8

525

400

None

3 Post Retirement Health Care Benefits

Employees who retire from the City are eligible to continue to participate in the Citys health insurance plan

However the City provides no funding for any portion of the premiums

4 Other Retirement and Miscellaneous Benefits

The City makes available to all of its fulltime employees a custom benefit plan cafeteria plan under Internal

Revenue Code Section 125 and a deferred compensation plan under Internal Revenue Code Section 457 The City

does not contribute to these plans All contributions are made by employees who elect to participate in the plans The

City remits employee contributions to the plan trustees on a regular basis The City does not administer the Section

457 plan nor does it provide investment advice to the plan Accordingly the Section 457 plan is not a part of the

Citys reporting entity

L Health Care Coverage

The City sponsors a modified selfinsurance plan to provide health care benefits to employees and their dependents

Transactions related to the plan are accounted for as a Proprietary Fund in the Internal Service Fund The Plan was

authorized by Article3512 Texas Insurance Code and was documented by contractual agreement

All claims against the City are filed with a third party administrator Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas who

investigates and processes the claims and provides administrative claims payment services for the plan The City contracts

with Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas for processing services and PPO contracts with doctors and hospitals Claims
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expenditures and liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be

reasonably estimated Changes in the Citys recorded claim liability were as follows

Claims and

Beginning Changes in Claims Ending
Fiscal Year Ended Balance Estimates Payments Balance

93006 31033 776478 781639 25872

93007 25872 756550 750065 32357

93008 32357 1027206 979826 79737

The City contributes 398 per month per employee to the Plan which includes comprehensive health care coverage

Employees at their option authorize payroll withholdings to pay contributions for dependent coverage In accordance

with state statute the City was protected against unanticipated catastrophic individual or aggregate loss by stoploss

coverage Excess loss coverage was provided by Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas with individual limits established at

50000 per participant but not to exceed a maximum point of attachment of950000 per participant for the policy period

The aggregate stop loss insurance provides that in no event shall the Citys point of attachment be less than1097064

Aggregate stop loss payments shall not exceed1000000

The contract between the City and Blue Cross and Blue Shield of Texas was renewed on June 1 2008

The latest financial statements of the insurance company are filed with the Texas State Board of Insurance Austin Texas

and are available public records

The plan also includes a 10000 death benefit for eligible employees The City contributes 406 per month per eligible

employee to the aforementioned Internal Service Fund to fund the benefit The death benefit is provided on aselfinsured

basis

M Risk Manaegment

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft damage or destruction of assets error and omission

injuries to employees and natural disasters During fiscal year 2008 the City obtained general liability coverage at a cost

that is considered to be economically justifiable by joining together with other governmental entities in the State as a

member of the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool TML TML is aselffunded pool operating as a

common risk management and insurance program The City pays an annual premium to TML for the aforementioned

insurance coverage The agreement for the formation of TML provides that TML will be selfsustaining through member

premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of acceptable risk levels however each

category of coverage has its own level of reinsurance The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of

loss There were no significant reductions in commercial insurance coverage in the past fiscal year and settled claims

resulting from these risks have not exceeded coverage in any of the past three fiscal years

The City is generally selfinsured for physical damage to vehicles An Internal Service Fund provides group health

insurance for City employees The City has a maximum annual retention of1097064 under its contract with Blue Cross

and Blue Shield of Texas for group health insurance

N Contingencies and Litiagtion

1 Contingencies

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various regulations and rules of the grantor agencies

Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies therefore

to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants refunds of any money

received may be required and the collectibility of any related receivable may be impaired In the opinion of the City

there are no significant contingent liabilities relating to the compliance with the rules and regulations governing the

respective grants therefore no provision has been recorded in the accompanying basic financial statements for such

contingencies
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2 Litigation and Claims

Certain claims have been made against the City The City intends to vigorously defend such claims or any suit In the

opinion of management the ultimate resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the

financial condition of the City

The Hale County Appraisal District Appraisal District is party to a lawsuit related to a dispute in the valuation of a

major taxpayers personal property for ad valorem tax purposes While the City is not party to the suit the Citys

management understands that the Appraisal District is vigorously defending the case and that in the opinion of the

Appraisal Districts management the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome to the City is low However should the

taxpayer prevail the Citys tax revenues for fiscal year 2009 could be reduced by an estimated amount of

approximately 136000

O Closure and Postclosure Care Cost

State and federal laws and regulations require the City to place a final cover on its City of Plainview Municipal Solid

Waste Landfill site when it stops accepting waste and to perform certain maintenance and monitoring functions at the site

for thirty years after closure Although closure and postclosure care costs will be paid only near or after the date that the

landfill stops accepting waste the City reports a portion of these closure and postclosure care costs as an operating expense

in each period based on landfill capacity used as of each balance sheet date The 992056 reported as landfill closure and

postclosure care liability as of September 30 2008 represents the cumulative amount reported to date based on the use of

1707 percent of the estimated capacity of the landfill The City will recognize the remaining estimated cost of closure and

postclosure of4819638 as the remaining estimated capacity is filled These amounts are based on what it would cost to

perform all closure and postclosure care in 2008 The City expects to close the landfill in the year 2086 Actual cost may

be higher due to inflation changes in technology or changes in regulations

It is the policy of the City to satisfy the EPA financial assurance requirements using the financial test method

Additionally the Solid Waste Management Fund has restricted cash and investments equal to the recorded liability for

landfill closure and postclosure costs which amounted to 992056 as of September 30 2008

P Investment in Joint Venture

The PlainviewHale County Airport is under equal joint ownership by the City of Plainview and the County of Hale

General administration is accomplished by an Airport Board composed of seven members Three members are appointed

by the City and three members are appointed by the County The seventh board member is selected by the other six board

members and is approved by both the City and County The degree of control of each government consists of its

representation on the Board Hale County is the fiscal agent for the joint venture General airport operations are funded

by user charges and typically require support for major improvements only

Summary Financial Information

Year Ending Date 12312007

Total current assets 50606

Total property and equipment 2679097

Total current liabilities 989

Net assets invested in capital assets net of related debt 2679097

Unrestricted net assets 49617

Total net assets 2728714

Total operating revenues 51856

Total operating expenses 110985

Nonoperating revenues 472

Net increase decrease in net assets 58657
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Complete financial statements for the joint venture can be obtained from

Maretta Smithson County Auditor

County of Hale

500 Broadway
Plainview TX 79072

The City had no transactions with the PlainviewHale County Airport for the year ended September 30 2008 other than

those related to routine water sewer and solid waste utility services The Citys interest in the joint venture is accounted

for using the equity method

Q Jointly Governed Organizations

The City is a member of the Canadian River Municipal Water Authority The Citys participation in the authority is

described in Note J under the subheading Surface Water Supply Contract Obligations

R Related Organizations

City of Plainview Housing Authority

While the Mayor of the City of Plainview has the authority to appoint members of the governing body of the City of

Plainview Housing Authority CPHA the Citys accountability for the CPHA does not extend beyond the Mayors

authority to make such appointments Accordingly CPHA is not included in the Citys reporting entity The City had no

transactions with CPHA for the year ended September 30 2008 other than those related to routine water sewer and solid

waste utility services

Firemens Relief and Retirement Fund

As more fully discussed in Note K the City participates in funding asingleemployer defined benefit pension plan for the

purpose of providing retirement benefits for the Citys firemen The Board of Trustees the Board of the Firemens Relief

and Retirement Fund the Fund consists of three firemen elected by the members two citizens elected by the Board and

the City Mayor and Finance Director serving as exofficio members The plan is funded by contributions from the

firemen which are matched by the City While the Fund benefits employees of the City and two City officials serve on

the Board the Fund is not included in the Citys reporting entity due to the following factors 1 As provided by enabling

legislation the Citys responsibility is limited to matching contributions made by members Pension benefits are

periodically adjusted to the amount of available assets and the City has no legal responsibility should deficit funding occur

nor does the City have the right to any surplus should the Fund be terminated 2 Title to assets is vested in the fund and

not in the City 3 The City Council has no authority to appoint members of the Board and those City officials serving on

the Board inexofficio capacity constitute a minority of the Board 4 Significant operations of the Fund generally consist

of investing and actuarial activities carried out by professional consultants and advisors under the supervision of the

Board The Texas Pension Review Board has general oversight responsibility for the Fund Thus the City Council does

not significantly influence operations of the Fund

S Commitments

At September 30 2008 the City was committed to the completion of a project involving the excavation and lining of a cell

and the installation of a monitoring well at the Citys landfill The total cost of the project is expected to amount to

approximately 998000 of which approximately 657000 had been expended as of September 30 2008 leaving

341000 to be expended to complete the project during fiscal year 2009 Additionally approximately 552000 is

expected to be expended during fisca12009 and subsequent years on improvements and extensions to the Citys water and

sewer system These expenditures are being financed from the proceeds of the1550000 Combination Tax and Revenue

Certificates of Obligation Series 2008 issued by the City during the year ended September 30 2008
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T ecialItem

GASBS No 34 defines special items as significant transactions within the control of management that are either unusual in

nature or infrequent in occurrence AHikeBike trail was completed during the year ended September 30 2008 The

portion of the costs of the trail paid by the Texas Department of Transportation amounted to1272713 The contribution

of the trail by the state to the City is reported in the Citys statement of activities as a special item

U GASB Pronouncement Effective Next Year

The City will implement GASBS No 45 Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefrts
Other than Pensions for the year ending September 30 2009 GASBS No 45 provides for new reporting recognition and

disclosure requirements related to such postemployment benefits While City retirees who choose to continue to participate
in the Citys modified selfinsurance health insurance plan pay their own premiums the related actuarially determined

Annual Required Contribution ARC and Net Other Postemployment Benefit Obligation NOO will be required to be

recognized and reported in the Citys financial statements The City plans to recognize such obligation prospectively rather

than retroactively therefore no prior period adjustment is expected to be reported as a result of the adoption of GASBS

No 45 The amount that will be recognized as an expenseexpenditure next year will be based on the ARC less actual

claims paid on behalf of retirees and premiums paid by retirees which will result in the NOO

While the City has not completed the process of evaluating the impact that will result from adopting GASBS No 45

preliminary actuarial estimates indicate an ARC amount of 190438 assuming the City continues its current payasyou

go funding policy Should the City change its policy and fund an irrevocable trust by an amount equal to the ARC each

year the actuarial preliminary estimate of the ARC would be 142472

V Subsequent Event

The City has an outstanding statefunded Economic Development Loan receivable from Peanut Corporation of America

The principal balance of the loan at September 30 2008 was 82623 At January 30 2009 the balance was 75129

Products produced by Peanut Corporation of America have been subject to recalls and a government investigation is in

progress The outcome of the investigation and the ultimate impact on the financial condition of Peanut Corporation of

America is not presently known
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT E1

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Ac tual Amounts Adjustments Actual Amounts Variance With

on to on Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts

Gip Budget Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Basis Basis Negative

REVENUES
Taxes

Property Taxes 3697800 3697800 3768012 3768012 70212

General Sales and Use Taxes 3150000 3150000 3523496 3523496 373496

Selective Sales and Use Tax 22500 22500 28171 28171 5671

Franchise Tax 1170000 1170000 1391824 1391824 221824

Penalty and Interest on Taxes 45000 45000 61680 61680 16680

Licenses and Permits 38150 38150 48800 48800 10650

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants 203420 203420 198015 198015 5405

Charges for Services 591635 591635 742441 742441 150806

Fines 223150 223150 286414 286414 63264

Investment Earnings 325000 325000 309551 309551 15449

Rents and Royalties 360 360 360 360

Contributions Donations 500 500 25 25 475

Other Revenue 656845 656845 13077 651645 664722 7877

Total Revenues 10124360 10124360 10371866 651645 11023511 899151

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government Administration

City Council 59165 59165 7230 46365 39135 20030

City Manager 242425 242425 74683 152740 227423 15002

NonDepartmental 352830 352830 246293 246293 106537

Legal 182265 182265 70356 109810 180166 2099

Finance 58615 58615 49992 102760 52768 5847

Human Resources 69105 69105 61536 61536 7569

Civil Service 75335 75335 73924 73924 1411

Property Tax AppraisalCollection 94000 94000 71019 71019 22981

General Government Other

Municipal Court 163610 163610 166478 166478 2868

Community Development 105965 128805 123750 123750 5055

Code Enforcement 156280 156280 129924 129924 26356

Main Street 79495 79495 38124 41350 79474 21

Airport 12500 12500 9116 9116 3384

Public Safety
Police 2908120 2908120 2874072 2874072 34048

Fire 2093610 2093610 1951366 1951366 142244

Emergency Medical Services 546565 546565 545496 545496 1069

Traffic Control 184240 184240 160131 160131 24109

Emergency Operations Center 3340 3340 3154 3154 186

Street Lighting 187500 187500 180658 180658 6842

Animal Control 113250 113250 113652 113652 402

Public Works

Public Works General 256565 256565 78303 198620 120317 136248

Street Cleaning 195095 195095 190997 190997 4098

Streets Other 703010 703010 625800 625800 77210

Building Operations 89240 89240 90746 90746 1506

Custodial Services 1078 1078 1078

Health

CityCounty Health Department 151705 167435 166084 166084 1351

Health OPHPLPHS BRHLO 130685 84875 74405 74405 10470

Health TDHIMM 138145 145385 140807 140807 4578

Recreation and Culture

Parks 686155 686155 577958 577958 108197

Swimming Pool 17500 17500 15000 15000 2500

Library 375565 388565 362202 362202 26363

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay 51410 51410 92908 92908 41498

Total Expenditures 10483290 10496290 9096192 651645 9747837 748453
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT E1 Confd

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Adjustments Actual Amounts Variance With

on to on Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts

GAAP Budget Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Basis Basis Negative

Excess Deficiency of Revenues Over Under 358930 371930 1275674 1275674 1647604

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Sale of Real and Personal Property 1000 1000 1000

Transfers In 391650 391650 416018 416018 24368

Transfers Out Use 25000 759000 759000 759000

Total Other Financing Sources Uses 367650 366350 342982 342982 23368

Change in Fund Balance 8720 738280 932692 932692 1670972

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning 7522619 7522619 7522619 7522619

Fund Balance September 30 Ending 7531339 6784339 8455311 8455311 1670972
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS PENSION PLANS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

EXHIBIT E2

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued Unfunded UAAL as a

Actuarial Value of Liability AAL AAL Funded Covered Percentage of

Valuation Assets Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Covered Payroll

Date a b ba ab c bac

TEXAS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT SYSTEM

123105 13565991 16810674 3244683 807

123106 14198909 17878570 3679661 794

123107 14823076 20891460 6068384 710

4666241
4892979

5045994

695

752

1203

FIREMENSRELIEF AND RETIREMENT FUND

123103 4041054 8086413 4045359 500

123105 4186628 8975448 4788820 466

123107 5828076 10625354 4797278 549

1291928
1383609
1480909

3131

3461

3239

Previously reported amounts for 123103 and 123105 were corrected by actuaries in the 123107 actuarial report

There was no impact on the financial statements as a result of the corrections
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Budetarv Data

A Explanation of Differences Between Budget Basis and GAAP Basis Actual Amounts for the General Fund

The General Fund incurs certain expenditures that are subsequently reimbursed by the Enterprise Funds Such

reimbursements are reported as revenues for budgetary purposes but are eliminated by crediting the reimbursements

against the applicable departmental functional expenditure accounts for GAAP basis reporting

Total Revenues GAAP Basis 10371866

Interfund Reimbursements 651645

Total Revenues Budget Basis 11023511

Total Expenditures GAAP Basis 9096192

Interfund Reimbursements 651645

Total Expenditures Budget Basis 9747837

B Budgetary Process

The official budget was prepared for adoption for the General Fund and certain Special Revenue Funds The

following procedures are followed in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the required supplementary

information

a Prior to the beginning of the fiscal year the City prepares a budget for the next succeeding fiscal year The

operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them

b A meeting of the City Council is then called for the purpose of adopting the proposed budget At least ten

days public notice of the meeting must have been given

c Prior to the start of the fiscal year the budget is legally enacted through passage of a resolution by the City

Council

d Once a budget is approved it can be amended only by approval of a majority of the members of the City

Council

e As required by law such amendments are made before the fact are reflected in the official minutes of the

City Council and are not made after fiscal year end

f During the year the budget was amended as necessary The following budget amendments were significant

for the general fund the budget was amended to provide fora 150000 transfer from the General Fund to

the Equipment Replacement Fund Internal Service Fund fora 250000 transfer from the General Fund to

the Capital Improvement Special Revenue Fund fora 100000 transfer to the Street Improvement Fund

Special Revenue Fund and for an additional 150000 transfer from the General Fund to the Economic

Development Special Revenue Fund

g All budget appropriations lapse at year end
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASCOMBININGBALANCESHEETNONMAJORGOVERNMENTALFUNDSSEPTEMBER302008CapitalImprovementFundHotelMotelOccupancyTaxFundStreetImprovementFundEconomicDevRevolvingLoanFundASSETSCashandCashEquivalentsTaxesReceivableReceivablesNetIntergovernmentalReceivablesTotalAssetsLIABILITIESANDFUNDBALANCESLiabilitiesAccountsPayableWagesandSalariesPayableTotalLiabilitiesFundBalancesReservedForNoncurrentLoansUnreservedandUndesignatedReportedintheSpecialRevenueFundTotalFundBalancesTotalLiabilitiesandFundBalances8806113717684936991970832313629252112588806113978294936994083413238323821125888061139459149369919708388061139459149369940834188061139782949369940834156



EXHIBIT F1 Contd

Police Federal Police BioTerrorism Economic Municipal Municipal

Seizures Shared Pending RSVP Grant Development Court Sec Court Tech

Fund Forfeit Fund Seizures Fund Fund Fund Fund Fee Fund Fee Fund

2264 2418 3985 10454 1392 515699 39332 31467

6544

2264 2418 3985 16998 1392 515699 39332 31467

3985 13648 1392

3350

3985 16998 1392

2264 2418 515699 39332 31467

2264 2418 515699 39332 31467

2264 2418 3985 16998 1392 515699 39332 31467
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

EXHIBIT F1

Total

TSLAC PAC Home Program Nonmajor

HUG Library 20060174 Governmental

Grant Fund Fund Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Taxes Receivable

Receivables Net

Intergovernmental Receivables

Total Assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Wages and Salaries Payable

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Reserved For

Noncurrent Loans

Unreserved and Undesignated

Reported in the Special Revenue Fund

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

6909 32621 2589702

23136

214183

6544

6909 32621 2833565

22263

3350

25613

211258

6909 32621 2596694

6909 32621 2807952

6909 32621 2833565
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Capital

Improvement
Fund

HotelMotel

Occupancy
Tax Fund

Street

Improvement
Fund

Economic Dev

Revolving
Loan Fund

REVENUES

Taxes

Selective Sales and Use Tax

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants

Fines

Investment Earnings
Contributions Donations

Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General Government Administration

General Government Other

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess Deficiency of Revenues Over Under
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Transfers In

Transfers Out Use

Total Other Financing Sources Uses

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

Fund Balance September 30 Ending

293850

20318 9595 23026 17914

13738 13712

34056 303445 36738 17914

4539 157230 9280

59975 14222

64514 171452 9280

30458 131993 36738 8634

250000 100000

31000

250000 31000 100000

219542 100993 136738 8634

661069 293598 356961 399707

880611 394591 493699 408341
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EXHIBIT F2 Contd

Police Federal Police BioTerrorism

Seizures Shared Pending RSVP Grant

Fund Forfeit Fund Seizures Fund Fund Fund

Economic

Development
Fund

Municipal
Court Sec

Fee Fund

Municipal
Court Tech

Fee Fund

90395
8366 10912

8099
6387

96782 8099 8366 10912

35443
94442 4051

1770 2340

1770 96782 35443 4051

1770 27344 4315 10912

200000

200000

1770 172656 4315 10912

2264 4188 343043 35017 20555

2264 2418 515699 39332 31467
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN

FUND BALANCES NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Total

TSLAC PAC Home Program Nonmajor

HUG Library 20060174 Governmental

Grant Fund Fund Funds

REVENUES

Taxes

Selective Sales and Use Tax

Intergovernmental Revenue and Grants

Fines

Investment Earnings
Contributions Donations

Other Revenue

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Current

General Government Administration

General Government Other

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Excess Deficiency of Revenues Over Under
Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Transfers In

Transfers Out Use

Total Other Financing Sources Uses

Net Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

Fund Balance September 30 Ending

293850
90395
19278

208 79160
6387
27450

208 516520

1379 207871
98493

78307

1379 384671

208 1379 131849

34000 584000
31000

34000 553000

208 32621 684849

6701 2123103

6909 32621 2807952
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG1STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALCAPITALIMPROVEMENTFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVarianceWithBudgetedAmountsonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeREVENUESInvestmentEarningsOtherRevenueTotalRevenuesEXPENDITURESCurrentGeneralGovernmentAdministrationNonDepartmentalCapitalOutlayCapitalOutlayTotalExpendituresExcessDeficiencyofRevenuesOverUnderExpendituresOTHERFINANCINGSOURCESUSESTransfersInTotalOtherFinancingSourcesUsesChangeinFundBalanceFundBalanceOctober1BeginningFundBalanceSeptember30Ending450045002031815818137381373845004500340562955625000250004539204615530005530005997549302557800057800064514513486573500573500304585430422500002500002500002500005735003235002195425430426610696610696610698756933756988061154304262



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT G2

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL HOTELMOTEL OCCUPANCY TAX FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Vaziance With

Budgeted Amounts
n Final Budget

Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Negative

REVENUES
Taxes

Selective Sales and Use Tax 215000 215000 293850 78850

Investment Earnings 11500 11500 9595 1905

Total Revenues 226500 226500 303445 76945

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government Administration

NonDepartmental 181090 181090 157230 23860

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay 14200 14200 14222 22

Total Expenditures 195290 195290 171452 23838

Excess of Revenues Over 31210 31210 131993 100783

Expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES USES
Transfers Out Use 31000 31000 31000

Total Other Financing Sources Uses 31000 31000 31000

Change in Fund Balance 210 210 100993 100783

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning 293598 293598 293598

Fund Balance September 30 Ending 293808 293808 394591 100783
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG3STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALSTREETIMPROVEMENTFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008BudgetedAmountsActualAmountsVazianceWithonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeREVENUESInvestmentEarnings12750127502302610276OtherRevenue1371213712TotalRevenues12750127503673823988EXPENDITURESCurrentCapitalOutlayCapitalOutlay10000010000000000TotalExpenditures100000100000100000ExcessDeficiencyofRevenuesOverUnder872508725036738123988ExpendituresOTHERFINANCINGSOURCESUSESTransfersIn100000100000TotalOtherFinancingSourcesUses100000100000ChangeinFundBalance8725012750136738123988FundBalanceOctober1Beginning356961356961356961FundBalanceSeptember30Ending26971136971149369912398864



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG4STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALECONOMICDEVELOPMENTREVOLVINGLOANFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVazianceWithBudgetedAmountsonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeREVENUESInvestmentEarningsTotalRevenuesEXPENDITURESCurrentGeneralGovernmentAdministrationNonDepartmentalTotalExpendituresChangeinFundBalanceFundBalanceOctober1BeginningFundBalanceSeptember30Ending20500205001791425862050020500179142586928092809280928020500205008634118663997073997073997074202074202074083411186665



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT G5

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL POLICE SEIZURE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Variance With

Budgeted Amounts
on Final Budget

Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Negative

REVENUES
Fines

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

Fund Balance September 30 Ending

500 500 500

500 500 500

750 750 750

750 750 750

250 250 250

2264 2264 2264

2014 2014 2264 250
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG6STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALFEDERALSHAREDFORFEITEDFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVazianceWithBudgetedAmountsonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeEXPENDITURESCurrentCapitalOutlayCapitalOutlayTotalExpendituresChangeinFundBalanceFundBalanceOctober1BeginningFundBalanceSeptember30Ending4000400017702230400040001770223040004000177022304188418841881881882418223067



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG7STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALRSVPFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVarianceWithBudgetedAmountsonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeREVENUESIntergovernmentalRevenueandGrantsContributionsDonationsTotalRevenuesEXPENDITURESCurrentGeneralGovernmentOtherRSVPCapitalOutlayCapitalOutlayTotalExpendituresChangeinFundBalanceFundBalanceOctober1BeginningFundBalanceSeptember30Ending891608916090395250025006387916609166096782123538875122916609166094442278223402340916609166096782512268



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG8STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALECONOMICDEVELOPMENTFUNDFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVarianceWithonFinalBudgetBudgetedAmountsBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeREVENUESInvestmentEarnings5000500080993099TotalRevenues5000500080993099EXPENDITURESCurrentGeneralGovernmentAdministrationNonDepartmental75000750003544339557TotalExpenditures75000750003544339557ExcessDeficiencyofRevenuesOverUnder70000700002734442656ExpendituresOTHERFINANCINGSOURCESUSESTransfersIn50000200000200000TotalOtherFinancingSourcesUses50000200000200000ChangeinFundBalance2000013000017265642656FundBalanceOctober1Beginning343043343043343043FundBalanceSeptember30Ending3230434730435156994265669



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT G9

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL MUNICIPAL COURT SECURITY FEE FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Vaziance With

Budgeted Amounts
on Final Budget

Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Negative

REVENUES
Fines

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government Other

Municipal Court

Total Expenditures

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

Fund Balance September 30 Ending

5000 5000 8366 3366

5000 5000 8366 3366

5000 5000 4051 949

5000 5000 4051 949

4315 4315

35017 35017 35017

35017 35017 39332 4315
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT G10

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL MUNICIPAL COURT TECHNOLOGY FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Vaziance With

Budgeted Amounts
on Final Budget

Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Negative

REVENUES
Fines

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current

General Government Other

Municipal Court

Capital Outlay
Capital Outlay

Total Expenditures

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

Fund Balance September 30 Ending

6000 6000 10912 4912

6000 6000 10912 4912

500 500 500

4500 4500 4500

5000 5000 5000

1000 1000 10912 9912

20555 20555 20555

21555 21555 31467 9912
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS EXHIBIT G11

STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL TSLAC PAC HUG LIBRARY GRANT FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Actual Amounts Vaziance With

Budgeted Amounts
on Final Budget

Budget Positive or

Original Final Basis Negative

REVENUES
Investment Earnings

Total Revenues

Change in Fund Balance

Fund Balance October 1 Beginning

330 330 208 122

330 330 208 122

330 330 208 122

6701 6701 6701

Fund Balance September 30 Ending 7031 7031 6909 122
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASEXHIBITG12STATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENDITURESANDCHANGESINFUNDBALANCEBUDGETANDACTUALHOMEPROGRAM20060174FORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008ActualAmountsVarianceWithBudgetedAmountsonFinalBudgetBudgetPositiveorOriginalFinalBasisNegativeEXPENDITURESCurrentGeneralGovernmentAdministrationNonDepartmentalTotalExpendituresExcessDeficiencyofRevenuesOverUnderExpendituresOTHERFINANCINGSOURCESUSESTransfersInTotalOtherFinancingSourcesUsesChangeinFundBalanceFundBalanceOctober1BeginningFundBalanceSeptember30Ending13791379137913791379137934000340003400034000340003262113793400032621137973



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASCOMBININGSTATEMENTOFNETASSETSINTERNALSERVICEFUNDSSEPTEMBER302008UnemploymentEquipmentCompensationReplacementFundFundASSETSCurrentAssetsCashandCashEquivalents106599634145InvestmentsCurrent1124802InterestReceivableInvestments1489AccountsReceivableNetofUncollectibleAllowanceDuefromOtherFundsInventoriesTotalCurrentAssets1065991760436NoncurrentAssetsCapitalAssetsBuildings42656AccumulatedDepreciationBuildings3469MachineryandEquipment4033660AccumulatedDepreciationMachineryEquipment2242039TotalNoncurrentAssets1830808TotalAssets1065993591244LIABILITIESCurrentLiabilitiesAccountsPayable28074WagesandSalariesPayableCompensatedAbsencesPayableDuetoOtherFundsTotalCurrentLiabilities28074NoncurrentLiabilitiesCompensatedAbsencesPayableTotalNoncurrentLiabilitiesTotalLiabilities28074NETASSETSInvestedinCapitalAssetsNetofRelatedDebt1830808UnrestrictedNetAssets1065991732362TotalNetAssets106599356317074



EXHIBITH1PropertyHealthCafeteriaServiceTotalInsuranceInsurancePlanCenterInternalFundFundFundFundServiceFunds73984115770412852930861557639605085232397285965812535129512952348923489438634386315047662085645285296864755546224108364534923418693453381604284194088145896238793583499191430715047662085645285291521467468929162304713840337124180949632015497124180949631623047138106300303816419941994199419916230471381104993080151504766192334121391834994185219143075246607150476619233412139141647716091475



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASCOMBININGSTATEMENTOFREVENUESEXPENSESANDCHANGESINFUNDNETASSETSINTERNALSERVICEFUNDSFORTHEYEARENDEDSEPTEMBER302008UnemploymentEquipmentCompensationReplacementFundFundOPERATINGREVENUESChargesforServices5200378645OtherRevenueTotalOperatingRevenues5200378645OPERATINGEXPENSESPersonnelServicesSalariesandWagesPersonnelServicesEmployeeBenefitsPurchasedProfessionalTechnicalServices855PurchasedPropertyServices39552OtherOperatingExpenses9213SuppliesDepreciationandAmortization370863TotalOperatingExpenses10068410415OperatingIncomeLoss486831770NONOPERATINGREVENUESEXPENSESGainonSaleofProperty140InvestmentEarnings65304TotalNonoperatingRevenueExpenses65164IncomeLossBeforeTransfers486833394TransfersIn150000ChangeinNetAssets4868183394TotalNetAssetsOctober1Beginning1114673379776TotalNetAssetsSeptember30Ending106599356317076



EXHIBITH2PropertyHealthCafeteriaServiceTotalInsuranceInsurancePlanCenterInternalFundFundFundFundServiceFunds952801168927535751289461830573173434230095965211262312112275357512895518902251456566071278526566071279982560166875511438011438046356463563323443245572007527894206140134129460294601542538628852789242315205217678611336016195114049405636948051792084940563694805179068105421506115911133601000001711725000010542113993455061192840215911980013360550072671176893797150476619233412139141647716091477



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Unemployment Equipment

Compensation Replacement
Fund Fund

Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash Received from User Charges 5200 378645

Cash Payments to Employees for Services

Cash Payments for Suppliers 10068 20208

Other Operating Cash Receipts Payments
Net Cash Provided by Used for Operating
Activities

4868 358437

Cash Flows from NonCapital Financing Activities

Operating Transfers From To Other Funds 150000

Cash Flows from Coital Related Financing Activities

Acquisition of Capital Assets 647102

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of Certificates of Deposit 1124802

Interest and Dividends on Investments 63815

Net Cash Provided by Used for Investing
1060987

Activities

Net IncreaseDecrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents 4868 1199652

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of the Year 111467 1833797

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 106599 634145
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Compliance and Internal Control



WILLIAMS MERIWETHER SMITH COLLP
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Coleman Williams CPA 1401AWest 5h Street

George Meriwether CPA CFP Plainview Texas 790727830

Blaine Smith CPA

Telephone 806 2934158

Facsimile 806 2965314

Email WMS@CPApointcom

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND

ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the City Council

City of Plainview Texas

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities the businesstype activities each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Plainview Texas the City as of and for the year

ended September 30 2008 which collectively comprise the Citys basic financial statements and have issued our

report thereon dated February 9 2009 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govemment

Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States

Internal Control Over Financial Reoorting
In planning and performing our audit we considered the Citys internal control over financial reporting as a basis for

designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys internal control over financial reporting
Accordingly we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Citys internal control over financial reporting

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees in the

normal course of performing their assigned functions to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis A

significant deficiency is a control deficiency or combination of control deficiencies that adversely affects the Citys
ability to initiate authorize record process or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the Citys financial

statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the Citys internal control

A material weakness is a significant deficiency or combination of significant deficiencies that results in more than a

remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the

Citys internal control

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first

paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be

significant deficiencies or material weaknesses We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over financial

reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses as defined above

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Citys financial statements are free of material

misstatement we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws regulations contracts and grant

agreements noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial

statement amounts However providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our

audit and accordingly we do not express such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing Standards

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management the City Council and federal and state

awarding agencies and passthrough entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than

these specified parties

4tlactvn MerLweher Swuh Co Lt

February 9 2009

82



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

A Summary of Auditors Results

1 Financial Statements

Type of auditors report issued Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting

Material weaknesses identified No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted No

2 Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs

Material weaknesses identified Not applicable

Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses Not applicable

Type of auditors report issued on compliance for

major programs
Not applicable

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be

reported in accordance with Section 501a of

CircularA133 Not applicable

Identification of major programs

CFDA Numbers None

Name of Federal program or cluster None

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A

and Type B programs 500000

Auditee qualified as lowrisk auditee Not applicable

B Financial Statement Findings

None

C Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

Not applicable

83



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

None
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CapitalAssetsUsedintheOperationofGovernmentalFunds



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY SOURCES

SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Land

Buildings
Improvements other than buildings

Machinery and equipment
Construction in progress

Total

Investment in Capital Assets

Acquired prior to October 1 1990

Acquired after September 30 1990

General fund

General revenues 2855249

Special revenue funds

Capital improvements 3364368

Street improvements 4030735

HoteUMotel tax fund 489641

Police seizure 36380

RSVP fund 5697

Homeland security grant 127678

LLEBG grant 80927

Bioterrorism grant 5585

Municipal court security fund 16481

Municipal court technology fund 7970

Total

EXHIBIT I1

519919

2881396
14939706

3349139
6760

21696920

10676209

11020711

21696920

This schedule presents only the capital assets related to governmental funds Accordingly

the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above

amounts However the capital assets of the internal service funds are included in the

governmental activities column of the governmentwide statement of net assets Additionally

accumulated depreciation is not included in this schedule

86



EXHIBIT I2

CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

Improvements
Other Than Machinery and Construction in

Land Buildings Buildings Equipment Progress Total

From General Fund

General govemment 448904 346553 7265413 189561 8250431

Police 247676 430179 677855

Fire 246793 10423 550595 807811

Traffic and Safety 64810 214704 279514

Animal control 149754 11739 16207 177700

Civil defense 10604 10604

Engineering 16451 16451

Street 16223 812691 828914

Recreation 50490 497145 302405 850040

Library 298435 206468 504903

Health 26413 26413

Emergency medical services 14486 167039 181525

Total General Fund 448904 1370410 7849530 2943317 12612161

From Special Revenue Funds

Capital improvement fund 68715 1030264 2143879 114750 6760 3364368

Street improvement fund 2300 4946297 1435 4950032

HotelMotel tax fund 473729 15912 489641

Police seizure fund 800 35580 36380

RSVP fund 5697 5697

Homeland security grant 127678 127678

LLEBG grant 80927 80927

Bioterrorism grant 5585 5585

Municipal court security fund 6193 10288 16481

Municipal court technology fund 7970 7970

Total Special Revenue Funds 71 015 1510986 7090176 405822 6760 9084759

Total 519919 2881396 14939706 3349139 6760 21696920

This schedule presents only the capital assets related to governmental funds Accordingly

the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above

amounts However the capital assets of the internal service funds are included in the

govemmental activities column of the govemmentwide statement of net assets Additionally

accumulated depreciation is not included in this schedule

87



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN CAPITAL ASSETS USED IN THE OPERATION

OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BY FUNCTION AND ACTIVITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2008

EXHIBIT I3

Capital Assets Additions Capital Assets

93007 Deletions 93008

From General Fund

General government 8246405 4026 8250431

Police 671885 5970 677855

Fire 7765 86 31225 807811

Traffic and safety 279514 279514

Animal control 177970 270 177700

Civil defense 2809 7795 10604

Engineering 16451 16451

Street 828914 828914

Recreation 854194 4154 850040

Library 534527 29624 504903

Health 26413 26413

Emergency medical services 150107 31418 181525

Total General Fund 12565775 46386 12612161

From Special Revenue Funds

Capital improvements 2031679 1332689 3364368

Street improvements 4950032 4950032

HoteUMotel tax fund 475419 14222 489641

Police seizure fund 34610 1770 36380

RSVP fund 3357 2340 5697

Homeland security grant 127678 127678

LLEBG grant 80927 80927

Bioterrorism grant 5585 5585

Municipal court security fund 16481 16481

Municipal court technology fund 7970 7970

Total Special Revenue Funds

Total

7733738

20299513

1351021

1397407

9084759

This schedule presents only the capital assets related to governmental funds Accordingly

the capital assets reported in the internal service funds are excluded from the above

amounts However the capital assets of the internal service funds are included in the

governmental activities column of the governmentwide statement of net assets Additionally

accumulated depreciation is not included in this schedule

21696920
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DebtServiceRequirementsSchedulesofMaturities



CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT ENTERPRISE FUND

COMBINATION TAX AND REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2008

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
SCHEDULE OF MATURITIES

20082015

EXHIBIT J1

Outstanding
Debt

Fiscal Beginning
Year of Year Principal Interest Total

2008

2009 1550000 190000 59967 249967

2010 1360000 205000 44012 249012

2011 1155000 215000 36662 251662

2012 940000 225000 28963 253963

2013 715000 230000 21000 251000

2014 485000 240000 12775 252775

2015 245000 245000 4288 249288

Total 1550000 207667 1757667

Annual average requirements 221429 29667 251096
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CITY OF PLAINVIEW TEXAS

WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND

TAX AND WATERWORKS AND SEWER SYSTEM SURPLUS

REVENUE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION SERIES 2001

DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
SCHEDULE OF MATURITIES

20082021

EXHIBIT J2

Outstanding
Debt

Fiscal Beginning
Year of Year Principal Interest Total

2008 7925000 410000 371511 781511

2009 7515000 430000 351459 781459

2010 7085000 450000 331121 781121

2011 6635000 470000 310422 780422

2012 6165000 490000 288699 778699

2013 5675000 515000 265642 780642

2014 5160000 540000 241043 781043

2015 4620000 565000 214792 779792

2016 4055000 595000 186804 781 804

2017 3460000 625000 157062 782062

2018 2835000 655000 125375 780375

2019 2180000 690000 91750 781750

2020 1490000 725000 56375 781375

2021 765000 765000 19125 784125

Total 7925000 3011180 10936180

Annual average requirements 566071 215084 781155
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CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASWATERANDSEWERENTERPRISEFUNDWATERSUPPLYCONTRACTOBLIGATIONSALINITYCONTROLSERIES1999DEBTSERVICEREQUIREMENTSSCHEDULEOFMATURITIES20082010OutstandingDebtFiscalBeginningYearofYear20083984120092376120107064TotalAnnualaveragerequirementsPrincipalInterest1608017241669710397064746398413509132801170EXHIBITJ3Total17804177367810433501445091



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASWATERANDSEWERENTERPRISEFUNDWATERSUPPLYCONTRACTOBLIGATIONUSBRSERIES1999DEBTSERVICEREQUIREMENTSSCHEDULEOFMATURITIES20082018FiscalYearOutstandingDebtBeginningofYear2008560075200951969120104775402011433623201238768620133397302014289502201523675120161817282017123929201863353TotalAnnualaveragerequirementsEXHIBITJ4PrincipalInterestTotal40384261106649442151243946654543917225606647745937206066654347956185166647250228163086653652751139746672555023114946651757799888166680605766136667126335331686652156007517214773222250916156506656692



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASWATERANDSEWERENTERPRISEFUNDWATERSUPPLYCONTRACTOBLIGATION1999GROUNDWATERSECONDSERIESPARTIALLYREFUNDEDIN2005DEBTSERVICEREQUIREMENTSSCHEDULEOFMATURITIES20082020EXHIBITJ5OutstandingDebtFiscalBeginningYearofYearPrincipalInterestTotal2008218642315050310542525592820092035920158320980222563422010187760016576690126255892201117118341731138304925616220121538721181350752192565692013135737118995966908256867201411674121997805783725761720159676321782584761122586920167893741643813852720290820176249931727423019120293320184522511813511032519167620192709001901321313820327020208076880768411684884Total21864237204942906917Annualaveragerequirements1681865542322360993



CITYOFPLAINVIEWTEXASWATERANDSEWERENTERPRISEFUNDWATERSUPPLYCONTRACTOBLIGATIONCONTRACTREVENUEBONDSSERIES2005CONJUNCTIVEUSEGROUNDWATERSUPPLYPROJECTDEBTSERVICEREQUIREMENTSSCHEDULEOFMATURITIES20082025EXHIBITJ6OutstandingDebtBeginningFiscalYearofYearPrincipalInterestTotal2008176887591263912632009176887591263912632010176887591263912632011176887591263912632012176887591263912632013176887591263912632014176887591263912632015176887591263912632016176887550430899391403692017171844553362872151405772018166508356294843361406302019160878959226813041405302020154956362158781171402752021148740526739969466336865202212200062817655505133681620239382412970123985833687020246412293125512424833679920253286783286788217336895Total176887513478553116730AnnualAverageRequirements982717488117315294
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